Public Document Pack

Planning Agenda
Wednesday, 10 July 2019 at 6.00 pm
Council Chamber, Muriel Matters House, Breeds Place, Hastings, TN34 3UY.
Please enter the building via the Tourist Information Centre entrance.
For further information, please contact Democratic Services on 01424 451484 or email:
committee_admin@hastings.gov.uk
Page No.
1.

Apologies for Absence

2.

Declarations of Interest

3.

Minutes of Previous Meeting Held on 6 June 2019

4.

Notification of Any Additional Urgent Items

5.

Other Planning Applications

1 - 38

(a) Proposed Visitor Centre (HS/FA/19/00303)
(E Meppem, Senior Planning Officer)
http://publicaccess.hastings.gov.uk/onlineapplications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=_H
STBC_DCAPR_116320

39 - 50

(b) 10 Strongs Passage (HS/FA/19/00325)
(G Fownes, Assistant Planning Officer)
http://publicaccess.hastings.gov.uk/onlineapplications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=_H
STBC_DCAPR_116342

51 - 60

(c) White Rock Fountain (HS/CD/19/00470)
(S Wood, Principal Planning Officer)
http://publicaccess.hastings.gov.uk/onlineapplications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=_H
STBC_DCAPR_116489

61 - 68

(d) Discovery Playground (HS/FA/19/00097)
(S Wood, Principal Planning Officer)
http://publicaccess.hastings.gov.uk/onlineapplications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=_H
STBC_DCAPR_116112

69 - 78

Corporate & Democratic Services
www.hastings.gov.uk/meetings

6.

(e) Discovery Playground (HS/LB/18/00928)
(S Wood, Principal Planning Officer)
http://publicaccess.hastings.gov.uk/onlineapplications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=_H
STBC_DCAPR_115812

79 - 88

(f)

Store 1, Bottle Alley (HS/CD/19/00299)
(S Richard, Assistant Planning and Conservation Officer)
http://publicaccess.hastings.gov.uk/onlineapplications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=_H
STBC_DCAPR_116316

89 - 96

Planning Appeals and Delegated Decisions

97 - 100

Agenda Item
3 Document Pack
Public
PLANNING

6 JUNE 2019
Present: Councillors Roberts (Chair); Cox (Vice-Chair); K Beaney; Beaver; Bishop;
Davies; Marlow-Eastwood; Scott; and Webb.
125.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies received for Councillors Edwards (substituted by Councillor K Beaney); and
O’Callaghan.
126.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor
Beaver
Scott
Webb
Beaver

127.

Item
All items related to
highways
All items related to
highways
All items related to
highways
129.3 - Land to the rear
of 419 to 447 Bexhill
Road

Interest
Personal – East Sussex
County Councillor
Personal – East Sussex
County Councillor
Personal – East Sussex
County Councillor
Personal - Knows the
petitioner, been in
rooms where application
discussed but has not
given opinion and
comes to the meeting
with an open mind

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

RESOLVED – that the minutes of the meeting held on 1st May 2019 be approved
by the Chair as a true record.
128.

PLANNING APPLICATIONS ATTRACTING A PETITION

The Chair announced that a petition had been received after the agenda had been
published in relation to item 6a, Land to the rear of 419 to 447 Bexhill Road. This item
was therefore moved up the agenda to become item 5c.
128.1 Harrow Lane Playing Fields, Harrow Lane (HS/OA/17/00901)
Proposal

Outline application,(seeking approval
of Access) for the erection of 140
residential units (22 no. 4-bed, 61 no.
3-bed, 36 no. 2-bed, 21 no. 1-bed
units) of which fifty six are 'affordable
homes', public open space, access
and landscaping at Harrow Lane

PagePC.
11

PLANNING
6 JUNE 2019
Application No.
Conservation area
Listed building
Public consultation

Playing Fields, St Leonards-on-sea.
HS/OA/17/00901
No
No
Yes – 1 petition of objection and 22
letters of objection received.
Council application on Council owned
land

The Principal Planning Officer, Mrs Wood, presented amendments to the
requirements of the S106 Agreement in respect of the outline application for the
erection of 140 residential units (22 no. 4-bed, 61 no. 3-bed, 36 no. 2-bed, 21 no. 1bed units) of which fifty six are 'affordable homes', public open space, access and
landscaping at Harrow Lane Playing Fields, St Leonards-on-sea.
The application was recommended for approval by Councillors subject to a Section
106 Agreement on 12th September 2018.
Since the Planning Committee meeting of 12th September 2018 the requirements of
the S106 Agreement have been altered to include:
 removal of £5,000 financial contribution as this is dealt with by condition 15
linked to the Traffic Regulation Order (TRO).
 include description towards off-site highway works (secured by a section 278
agreement). These works would be Bus Stops (northbound and southbound),
with clearways shelters, real time information and seating, ghost right turn lane
and suitable pedestrian crossing point.
 amend bullet point 4 to include 'improving and maintaining existing play
provision at Welton Rise play area'.
The Planning Committee was reminded that only these amendments to the S106
Agreement were being considered as a resolution to grant permission has already
been approved.
The Principal Planning Officer advised that the part of the recommendation had been
included in the Addendum but omitted from the conclusion to the report. Members
were advised of the full recommendation.
Councillors were shown plans and photographs of the application site.
The petitioner, Councillor John Rankin, was present and spoke against the
application. Councillor Rankin suggested that there was inadequate provision for
children’s play across the proposed development. Point 4 of the Section 106
Agreement details a financial contribution towards the improvement and maintenance
of the Welton Rise play area, but Welton Rise does not form any part of the proposed
PC. 2

Page 2

PLANNING
6 JUNE 2019
development area. A child living in the top right-hand corner of the development would
have to negotiate busy roads, perhaps for half a mile, to get to the Welton Rise play
area. Councillor Rankin commented that his main concern was that children in large
houses will play in private gardens, whilst children in social and affordable housing will
be encouraged to play on the street and in Welton Rise. This would be against the
Council’s commitment to inclusive neighbourhoods.
Councillors asked questions of the petitioner.
The agent, Canan Catworthy, was present and spoke in support of the application. Ms
Catworthy reminded the Planning Committee that this debate relates purely to the
alteration of the Section 106 Agreement. It is appreciated that there has been
contention but it is hoped the Committee understand the application is the result of
detailed discussion with officers over a considerable period of time. It remains the
case that the development of the site has been granted permission in principle. Ms
Catworthy noted Councillor Rankin’s concerns about the play facilities but stated that
the application provides a workable site layout with green spaces of benefit to
children.
Councillors asked questions of the agent.
The Principal Planning Officer reiterated that the Planning Committee is being asked
to make a decision regarding the amendments to the Section 106 Agreement only.
The location of the play space has been determined by the outline application
approved at a previous committee meeting. The Local Plan commitment to informal
play space remains as referenced in condition 27 of the application which provides a
scheme for open space.
Councillors asked questions of the Principal Planning Officer. The officer confirmed
that what has been agreed within the outline application is to provide informal play
space on the site and improve and maintain the Welton Rise play area. Informal play
space is not an equipped play area and the management and maintenance of that is
to be decided.
Councillors debated the proposed amendments to the S106 Agreement.
Councillor Davies proposed a motion, seconded by Councillor Cox, to grant the
application as set out in the resolution below.
RESOLVED – (6 for, 2 against, 1 abstention) that:
A) That the Planning Services Manager be authorised to issue planning
permission upon completion of an agreement under S106 of the Town and
Country Planning Act to secure:


A financial contribution of £337,400 towards local highway
improvements;
PC. 3

Page 3

PLANNING
6 JUNE 2019


a section 278 agreement for off-site highway works including Bus
Stops (northbound and southbound), with clearways shelters, real
time information and seating, ghost right turn lane and suitable
pedestrian crossing point



A travel plan and associated auditing contribution of £6,000



A financial contribution towards improving and maintaining
existing play provision at Welton Rise play area of £110,600



The maintenance, management and monitoring of trees,
protected species and wildlife areas:



A financial contribution to libraries of £36,820



A financial contribution to public rights of way of £3,360



Provision on site of 56 affordable dwellings

Unless it has been conclusively shown that the development would not be viable and it
would still be acceptable in planning terms without the identified development
contribution. In the event that the Agreement is not completed by 5 December 2019
that permission be refused on the grounds that the application does not comply with
the relevant policies (policies H3, CI1, T3, EN3, EN6 and H1) of the Hastings Local
Plan, The Hastings Planning Strategy 2011-2028 or the Hastings Local Plan,
Development Management Plan unless an extension of time has been agreed in
writing by the Planning Services Manager in consultation with the Chair and Vice
Chair of the Planning Committee.
B) Subject to the above:
Grant Outline Planning Permission subject to the following conditions:
1. Approval of the details of the layout, scale and external appearance of the
building(s), and the landscaping of the site (hereinafter called "the reserved matters")
shall be obtained from the Local Planning Authority in writing before any development
is commenced.
2. Plans and particulars of the reserved matters referred to in Condition 1 above,
relating to the layout, scale, siting, design and external appearance of any buildings to
be erected, and the landscaping of the site, shall be submitted in writing to the Local
Planning Authority and shall be carried out as approved.
3. Application for approval of the reserved matters shall be made to the Local Planning
Authority before the expiration of three years from the date of this permission.
4. The development hereby permitted shall be begun either before the expiration of
three years from the date of this permission, or before the expiration of two years from
PC. 4

Page 4

PLANNING
6 JUNE 2019
the date of approval of the last of the reserved matters to be approved, whichever is
the later.
5. The development herby permitted shall be carried out, in terms of access only, in
accordance with the following approved plans: ITP 129-1-01-P2 and ITP 1219-1-02
P2. No part of the development shall be occupied until such time as the vehicular
access serving the development has been constructed in accordance with the
approved plans (ITP 129-1-01-P2 and ITP 1219-1-02-P2).
6. No part of the development shall be occupied until provision has been made within
the site to prevent surface water draining onto the public highway, in accordance with
plans and details to be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority.
7. The access shall have maximum gradients of 4% (1 in 25 from the channel line, or
for the whole width of the footway/verge whichever is the greater and 11% (1 in 9)
thereafter.
8. No part of the development shall be first occupied until visibility splays of 2.4 metres
by 90 metres have been provided at the proposed site vehicular access onto Harrow
Lane in accordance with the approved plans. Once provided the splays shall
thereafter be retained, maintained and kept free of all obstructions over a height of
600mm.
9. The development hereby permitted shall not commence until details of the layout of
the access roads and the specification for the construction of the access which shall
include details of footways, surfaces, lighting, parking and cycle parking, have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and the use
hereby permitted shall not commence until the construction of the road link has been
completed in accordance with the specification to be agreed with the Highway
Authority.
10. No part of the development shall be occupied until the vehicle turning space has
been constructed within the site in accordance with details submitted to and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This space shall thereafter be retained at all
times for this use and shall not be obstructed.
11. No development shall take place, including any ground works or works of
demolition, until a Construction Management Plan has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the approved Plan
shall be implemented and adhered to in full throughout the entire construction period.
The Plan shall provide details as appropriate but not be restricted to the following
matters,



the anticipated number, frequency and types of vehicles used during
construction,
the method of access and egress and routeing of vehicles during construction,
PC. 5

Page 5

PLANNING
6 JUNE 2019








the parking of vehicles by site operatives and visitors,
the loading and unloading of plant, materials and waste,
the storage of plant and materials used in construction of the development,
the erection and maintenance of security hoarding,
the provision and utilisation of wheel washing facilities and other works required
to mitigate the impact of construction upon the public highway (including the
provision of temporary Traffic Regulation Orders, traffic management),
details of public engagement both prior to and during construction works.

12. No development shall take place, including demolition, on the site until an agreed
pre commencement condition survey of the surrounding highway network has been
submitted and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Any damage
caused to the highway as a direct consequence of the construction traffic shall be
rectified at the applicant’s expense.
13. No part of the development shall be occupied until a Travel Plan has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation
with the Highway Authority. The Travel Plan once approved shall thereafter be
implemented as specified within the approved document.
The Travel Plan shall be completed in accordance with the latest guidance and good
practice documentation as published by the Department for Transport and/or as
advised by the Highway Authority.
14. Upon the occupation/commencement of use, the Applicant shall implement the
measures incorporated within the approved travel plan. The Applicant shall thereafter
monitor report and subsequently revise the travel plan as specified within the
approved document.
15. No development shall be commenced until such time as a Traffic Regulation Order
securing the provision of parking restriction on the west side of Harrow lane opposite
the site access has been approved in writing by the County Council and written
confirmation of this approval is made available to the Local Planning Authority.
16. (i) Construction of the development shall not commence until a drainage strategy
that includes details of the proposed means of foul sewerage and surface water
disposal/management, together with an implementation timetable, have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
(ii) Development shall be carried out in accordance with the details approved under (i)
and no occupation of any of the dwellings or flats hereby approved shall occur until
those works have been completed.
(iii) No occupation of any of the dwellings or flats hereby approved shall occur until the
Local Planning Authority has confirmed in writing that it is satisfied, that the necessary
PC. 6

Page 6

PLANNING
6 JUNE 2019
drainage infrastructure capacity is now available to adequately service the
development.
(vi) Prior to occupation of the development evidence (including photographs) should
be submitted showing that the drainage system has been constructed as per the final
agreed detailed drainage designs.
17. (i) Surface water runoff from the proposed development should be limited to a
maximum of 10.5l/s, which is the rate agreed to by Southern Water for all rainfall
events including those with a 1 in 100 (plus 40%) annual probability of occurrence.
Evidence of this (in the form of hydraulic calculations) should be submitted with the
detailed drainage drawings.
The hydraulic calculations should take into account the connectivity of the different
surface water drainage features.
(ii) The detailed design should also include information on how surface water flows
exceeding the capacity of the surface water drainage features will be managed safely.
This should incorporate measures to intercept and slow down overland surface water
flows through the woodland south of the development.
(iii) The detailed design of the attenuation ponds should be informed by findings of
additional groundwater monitoring between autumn and spring. The design should
leave at least 1m unsaturated zone between the base of the ponds and the highest
recorded groundwater level. If this cannot be achieved, details of measures that will be
taken to manage the impacts of high groundwater on the drainage system should be
provided. Evidence of how impacts of high groundwater on the structural integrity of
the tank will be managed should also be provided.
18. A maintenance and management plan for the entire drainage system should be
submitted to the Local Planning Authority before any construction commences on site
to ensure the designed system takes into account design standards of those
responsible for maintenance. The management plan should cover the following:
a) The plan should clearly state who will be responsible for managing all aspects of
the surface water drainage system, including piped drains, and the appropriate
authority should be satisfied with the submitted details.
b) Evidence that these responsibility arrangements will remain in place throughout the
lifetime of the development should be provided to the Local Planning Authority.
19. The applicant should detail measures to manage flood risk, both on and off the
site, during the construction phase. This may take the form of a standalone document
or incorporated into the Construction Management Plan for the development.
20. No development shall take place until the developer has secured the
implementation of a programme of archaeological work, in accordance with a Written
PC. 7

Page 7

PLANNING
6 JUNE 2019
Scheme of Archaeological Investigation which has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority.
21. The development hereby permitted shall not be brought into use until the
archaeological site investigation and post investigation assessment (including
provision for analysis, publication and dissemination of results and archive deposition)
has been completed in accordance with the programme set out in the Written Scheme
of Investigation approved under condition [20] to the satisfaction of the Local Planning
Authority, in consultation with the County Planning Authority.
22. Safe access to footpath Hastings 142, 143 and 144 is to be maintained at all times
during and following completion of the development. Details of walking and cycle links
should be submitted as part of a Reserved Matters application.
23. The landscaping details required by condition 1 above (reserved matters) shall
include details of open space and play provision.
24. No development shall take place (including demolition, ground works, vegetation
clearance) until a Construction Environmental Management Plan for biodiversity
(CEMP: Biodiversity) has be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning
authority. The CEMP: Biodiversity shall include the following;
a) Risk assessment of potentially damaging construction activities.
b) Identification of “biodiversity protection zones”.
c) Practical measures (both physical measures and sensitive working practices) to
avoid or reduce impacts during construction (may be provided as a set of method
statements).
d) The location and timing of sensitive works to avoid harm to biodiversity features.
e) The times during construction when specialist ecologists need to be present on site
to oversee works.
f) Responsible persons and lines of communication.
g) The role and responsibilities on site of an ecological clerk of works (ECoW) or
similarly competent person.
h) Use of protective fences, exclusion barriers and warning signs. The approved
CEMP: Biodiversity shall be adhered to and implemented throughout the construction
period strictly in accordance with the approved details and phasing agreed, unless
otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority.
25. No development shall take place until an ecological design strategy (EDS).
The EDS shall include the following:
PC. 8

Page 8

PLANNING
6 JUNE 2019
a) Purpose and conservation objectives for the proposed works.
b) Review of site potential and constraints.
c) Detailed design(s) and/or working method(s) to achieve stated objectives.
d) Extent and location/area of proposed works on appropriate scale maps and plans.
e) Type and source of materials to be used where appropriate, e.g. native species of
local provenance.
f) Timetable for implementation demonstrating that works are aligned with the
proposed phasing of development.
g) Persons responsible for implementing the works.
h) Details of initial aftercare and long-term maintenance.
i) Details for monitoring and remedial measures.
j) Details for disposal of any wastes arising from works.
The EDS shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details and all
features shall be retained in that manner thereafter.
26. A landscape and ecological management plan (LEMP) shall be submitted to, and
be approved in writing by, the local planning authority prior to commencement of the
development. The content of the LEMP shall include the following;
a) Description and evaluation of features to be managed.
b) Ecological trends and constraints on site that might influence management.
c) Aims and objectives of management.
d) Appropriate management options for achieving aims and objectives.
e) Prescriptions for management actions.
f) Preparation of a work schedule (including an annual work plan capable of being
rolled forward over a five-year period).
g) Details of the body or organization responsible for implementation of the plan.
h) Ongoing monitoring and remedial measures.
The LEMP shall also include details of the legal and funding mechanism(s) by which
the long-term implementation of the plan will be secured by the developer with the
management body(ies) responsible for its delivery.

PC. 9

Page 9

PLANNING
6 JUNE 2019
The plan shall also set out (where the results from monitoring show that conservation
aims and objectives of the LEMP are not being met) how contingencies and/or
remedial action will be identified, agreed and implemented so that the development
still delivers the fully functioning biodiversity objectives of the originally approved
scheme. The approved plan will be implemented in accordance with the approved
details.
27. No development shall take place until a scheme for the provision of open space
(including children's play area), as part of the development within the site in
accordance with policy EN8 of the Hastings Local Plan and national guidance on open
space provision has been submitted to and agreed by the Local Planning Authority.
The scheme shall include details of the laying out and construction of the open space,
a timetable for its provision and arrangements for its future maintenance. The open
space shall then be provided and maintained in accordance with the approved
scheme, unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning authority.
28. No development shall take place until the measures outlined in the submitted
arboricultural report (titles Arboricultural Impacts Assessment and Method Statement,
prepared by PJV Consultancy, dated August 2017) have been fully implemented,
unless:
(i) the programme for such measures is otherwise specified within that document in
which case the works shall be carried out in accordance with the timescales contained
therein or;
(ii) unless the scheme(s), or programme(s) of measures contained within the
arboricultural reports is otherwise first varied, by way of prior written approval from the
Local Planning Authority.
29. The details required by Condition 1 shall include a full and adequate site
investigation and soils report and work shall not proceed until and unless measures
deemed to be necessary by the Local Planning Authority as a result of such report
have been incorporated in the development proposals.
30. Each individual dwelling hereby approved shall not be occupied until a minimum of
one electric vehicle charging point has been installed on the given building(s) with
dedicated off street parking, and shall thereafter be retained for that purpose.
31. The details submitted for condition 1 (reserved matters) above shall include
provision of at least 2% of the dwellings to be fully adapted for wheelchair users.
32. Before the development hereby approved is occupied provision shall be made for
the ability to connect to fibre-based broadband.
Reasons:
1. The application is in outline only.
PC. 10

Page 10

PLANNING
6 JUNE 2019
2. The application is in outline only.
3. This condition is imposed in accordance with the provisions of Section 92 of the
Town & Country Planning Act 1990.
4. This condition is imposed in accordance with the provisions of Section 92 of the
Town & Country Planning Act 1990.
5. For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.
6. In the interests of highway safety.
7. In the interests of road safety.
8. In the interests of road safety.
9. To secure satisfactory standards of access for the proposed development.
10. In the interest of highway safety and for this benefit and convenience of the public
at large.
11. To the interests of highways safety and the amenities in the area.
12. In the interests of highway safety and the amenities of the area.
13. To encourage and promote sustainable transport.
14. To encourage and promote sustainable transport.
15. In the interests of amenity and road safety.
16. To prevent increased risk of flooding.
17. To prevent increased risk of flooding.
18. To prevent increased risk of flooding.
19. To prevent increased risk of flooding.
20. To ensure that the archaeological and historical interest of the site is safeguarded
and recorded to comply with the National Planning Policy Framework.
21. To ensure that the archaeological and historical interest of the site is safeguarded
and recorded to comply with the National Planning Policy Framework.
22. To maintain Public Rights of Way.
23. To ensure a satisfactory form of development in the interests of the character and
amenity of the area.
24. To protect features of recognised nature conservation importance.
PC. 11

Page 11

PLANNING
6 JUNE 2019
25. To protect features of recognised nature conservation importance of the site and in
the interests of the amenity of the neighbouring residential occupiers.
26. To protect and enhance the ecological value of the site.
27. To ensure a satisfactory form of development in the interests of the character and
amenity of the area.
28. In the interests of the health of the trees and the visual amenity of the area.
29. To ensure a satisfactory standard of development.
30. To ensure a satisfactory standard of development.
31. To comply with condition LRA1 of the Hastings Local Plan, Development
Management Plan.
32. To ensure the development complies with policy SC1 of the Hastings Local Plan:
The Hastings Planning Strategy.
Notes to the Applicant
1. Failure to comply with any condition imposed on this permission may result in
enforcement action without further warning.
2. Statement of positive engagement: In dealing with this application Hastings
Borough Council has actively sought to work with the applicant in a positive and
proactive manner, in accordance with paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy
Framework.
3. The applicant is advised that the 300 mm diameter surface water sewer requires a
clearance of 3 metres either side of the sewer to protect it from construction works and
allow for future access for maintenance. No development or new tree planting should
be located within 3 metres either side of the centreline of the public sewer.
4. The applicant is advised that the 200 mm diameter water trunk main requires a
clearance of 6 metres either side of the water trunk main to protect it from construction
works and allow for future access for maintenance.
5. The applicant is advised that no development or new tree planting should be
located within 6 metres either side of the centreline of the water trunk main without
consent of Southern Water.
All existing infrastructure, including protective coatings and cathodic protection, should
be protected during the course of construction works. No new soakaways should be
located within 5m of a public sewer and water main.
6. The applicant is advised that noncompliance with Sewers for Adoption standards
will preclude future adoption of the foul and surface water sewerage network on site.
PC. 12

Page 12

PLANNING
6 JUNE 2019
The design of drainage should ensure that no groundwater or land drainage is to enter
public sewers.
7. The applicant is advised that due to changes in legislation that came in to force on
1st October 2011 regarding the future ownership of sewers it is possible that a sewer
now deemed to be public could be crossing the above property. Therefore, should any
sewer be found during construction works, an investigation of the sewer will be
required to ascertain its condition, the number of properties served, and potential
means of access before any further works commence on site.
The applicant is advised to discuss the matter further with Southern Water,
Sparrowgrove House Sparrowgrove, Otterbourne, Hampshire SO21 2SW (Tel: 0330
303 0119) or www.southernwater.co.uk”.
8. The applicant is advised that a formal application for connection to the water supply
is required in order to service this development. Please contact Southern Water,
Sparrowgrove House Sparrowgrove, Otterbourne, Hampshire SO21 2SW (Tel: 0330
303 0119) or www.southernwater.co.uk
9. The applicant is advised that all side elevations facing access roads should be
designed to a high standard and avoid blank facades and large expanse of wall.
10. The applicant is advised that the gateway 'key' buildings located either side of the
junction into the site from Harrow Lane shall incorporate a design that better
addresses its corner location than currently shown on illustrative plans and elevations.
This amended design shall form part of the reserved matters application.
11. The applicant is advised that rear parking courts should be enclosed by brick walls
and this should be shown within any subsequent Reserved Matters application.
12. The applicant is advised that parking spaces to the front of garages should have a
depth of 6m. Any Reserved Matters application should incorporate this into the design.
13. The applicant is advised that they must ensure the proposed works, hereby
approved, do not contravene laws protecting wildlife including the Countryside and
Wildlife Act 1981. Where the applicant is in doubt they should contact Natural England
on wildlife@naturalengland.org.uk Telephone 020 802 61089 or Environment and
Natural Resources on parks@hastings.gov.uk Telephone 01424 451107 prior to
commencement of any works.
14. The applicant should contact the Sussex Police Architect Liaison Officer at the
Police Station, Bohemia Road, Hastings to discuss the "Secured by Design" principles
for new developments.
15. No site clearance or tree or hedge removal shall be carried out on site between
the 1st March and 31st July inclusive in any year, unless otherwise approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority.
PC. 13

Page 13

PLANNING
6 JUNE 2019
16. Nothing in this permission shall be construed as giving approval to the details
shown on the plans accompanying the application hereby approved. Such plans have
been treated as being indicative only.
17. Incentives for residents encourage them to rethink journeys from the very start of
locating in a new neighbourhood to be adopted within the travel plan to be resubmitted
with the reserved matters applications, to include:
1) 3 months of bus travel with option to renew for a further 6 months with discount
2) £100 for cycles or accessories
3) 5 supermarket deliveries
4) Car club vehicle dedicated space within the development
5) Other incentives should include as suggested in the residents’ information pack
plus scheduled cycle training and Bike doctor visits.
128.2 Land to the rear of 5-7 Combermere Road (HS/FA/18/00825)
Proposal

Application No.
Conservation area
Listed building
Public consultation

Erection of detached three storey
house, including basement and
formation of vehicular access onto
Clinton Crescent
HS/FA/18/00825
Yes – Springfield Road
No
Yes – 20 letters of objection and 1
petition of objection

The Principal Planning Officer, Mrs Wood, presented the application for the erection of
a detached three storey house, including basement and formation of vehicular access
onto Clinton Crescent.
The Principal Planning Officer informed the Committee that an additional objection
had been received since the publication of the report.
Councillors were shown plans, photographs and elevations of the application site.
The petitioner, Mr Kelvie, was present and spoke against the application. Mr Kelvie
informed the Committee that one of the important features of the area is its spacious
and open feeling as a wide tree lined street with deep front and rear gardens. Now
there is the possibility of a large property opposite which will have a significant impact
on light, particularly in winter when the sun is low. Mr Kelvie said that the upper floor
windows to the rear of the proposed property will overlook his garden and breakfast
room, resulting in a loss of privacy and amenity. The site is insufficient in size and
constitutes overdevelopment of a small garden plot. Mr Kelvie stated that the Planning
PC. 14

Page 14

PLANNING
6 JUNE 2019
Officer’s report specified that external amenity space should be 10 metres in length,
and that this was not the case for this application.
Councillors asked questions of the petitioner.
The agent, Cos Polito, was present and spoke in support of the application. He stated
that no objections were raised by stakeholders. The officer’s report highlights there will
be no adverse impact arising from the development to neighbouring amenity. This is a
sustainable development which makes efficient use of an unused garden plot and
provides much needed housing stock. The Council’s own officers, including the
Conservation Officer are satisfied.
No questions were asked of the agent.
The Principal Planning Officer confirmed that external amenity space is required to be
10 metres in length; however it can be taken on a case by case basis. As the external
amenity space of the application is 10 metres in width and nearly 10 metres in length it
has been recommended for approval. This is not unusual practice. She also
confirmed that only a small part of the wall was to be removed and replaced with
gates.
The Principal Planning Officer informed the Committee that the words ‘prior to the
commencement of development above ground’ should be added to the beginning of
condition 9.
Councillors debated the application.
Councillor Beaver proposed a motion, subject to the amendment to condition 9,
seconded by Councillor Bishop, to grant the application as set out in the resolution
below.
RESOLVED – (6 for, to 3 against) that Full Planning Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:
1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three
years from the date of this permission.
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following approved plans: 1809/02, 1809/03, 1809/04 REV E and 1809/05
3. With the exception of internal works the building works required to carry out the
development allowed by this permission must only be carried out within the following
times:08.00 - 18.00 Monday to Friday
08.00 - 13.00 on Saturdays
PC. 15

Page 15

PLANNING
6 JUNE 2019
No working on Sundays or Public Holidays.
4. The car parking spaces shown on the approved plan shall be provided prior to the
occupation of the development hereby permitted and thereafter shall not be used for
any purpose other than the parking of vehicles.
5. i. No part of the development shall be occupied until such time as the vehicular
access has been constructed in accordance with plans and details submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
ii. The access shall have maximum gradients of 4% (1 in 25) / 2.5% (1 in 40) from the
channel line, or for the whole width of the footway/verge whichever is the greater and
11% (1 in 9) thereafter.
iii. No part of the development shall be occupied until provision has been made within
the site in accordance with plans and details to be submitted to and approved by the
Local Planning Authority, to prevent surface water draining onto the public highway.
6. No part of the development shall be occupied until covered and secure cycle
parking spaces have been provided in accordance with plans and details submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The area[s] shall thereafter
be retained for that use and shall not be used other than for the parking of cycles.
7. (i) Construction of the development shall not commence until a detailed drainage
layout showing the proposed means of foul sewerage and surface water
disposal/management have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.
(ii) Development shall then be carried out in accordance with the details approved
under (i) and no occupation of any of the dwellings or flats hereby approved shall
occur until those works have been completed. and
(iii) No occupation of any of the dwellings or flats hereby approved shall occur until the
Local Planning Authority has confirmed in writing that it is satisfied, that the necessary
drainage infrastructure capacity is now available to adequately service the
development, which should include evidence of agreement in principle from the asset
owner/organisation
8. No development shall take place until the measures outlined in the submitted
ecological statements and reports by Meyhew Consultancy dated 7 July 2018, have
been fully implemented, unless:
(i) the programme for such measures is otherwise specified within that document (for
example with regard to measures related to monitoring), in which case the works shall
be carried out in accordance with the timescales contained therein or;

PC. 16

Page 16

PLANNING
6 JUNE 2019
(ii) unless the scheme(s), or programme(s) of measures contained within the
ecological statements and reports is otherwise first varied, by way of prior written
approval from the Local Planning Authority.
9. Prior to the commencement of development above ground samples and details of
the materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the proposed
dwelling hereby permitted have been submitted to or made available on site and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out
in accordance with the approved details.






Provision of samples of the roof covering. (ridges, hips, and tiles)
Sample of Hung tiles to be used on the bays and gable ends.
Details of all windows and doors on the building and the main gate to the site.
Details of chimney pot
Slate tile sample

10. All planting seeding or turfing comprised in the approved soft landscaping scheme
shall be carried out prior to the occupation of any part of the development, or with the
written agreement of the Local Planning Authority, in the first planting and seeding
seasons following the occupation of any buildings or the completion of the
development, whichever is the sooner.
Any trees or plants which within a period of 5 years from the completion of the
development die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be
replaced in the next planting season with others of similar size and species, unless the
Local Planning Authority gives written consent to any variation.
11. No development shall take place until temporary protective fences to safeguard
the trees and/or hedges to be retained on the site have been erected in accordance
with the current BS5837:2012: Trees in relation to design, demolition and construction,
standards and to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority. All such fences shall
be kept in a sound, upright and complete condition until the development has been
completed and/or the Local Planning Authority confirm in writing that the works have
been sufficiently completed for the fencing to be removed.
12. Prior to works above ground, details of appropriate climate change mitigation and
adaptation measures as required by policy SC3 of the Hastings Local Plan, The
Hastings Planning Strategy 2011-2028 should be submitted and approved by the
Local Planning Authority.
13. Before the development hereby approved is occupied provision shall be made for
the ability to connect to fibre-based broadband.
Reasons:

PC. 17

Page 17

PLANNING
6 JUNE 2019
1. This condition is imposed in accordance with the provisions of Section 91 of the
Town and Country Planning Act 1990.
2. For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.
3. To safeguard the amenity of adjoining residents.
4. To ensure an adequate level of off-street parking to serve the development.
5. In the interests of road safety
6. To provide alternative travel options to the use of the car in accordance with current
sustainable transport policies.
7. To prevent increased risk of flooding.
8. To ensure that the measures considered necessary as part of the ecological impact
assessment are carried out as specified.
9. In the interests of the visual amenity of the area.
10. To ensure a satisfactory form of development in the interests of the visual amenity.
11. To ensure a satisfactory form of development in the interests of the visual amenity.
12. To ensure the development complies with Policy SC3 of the Hastings Local Plan:
The Hastings Planning Strategy.
13. To ensure the development complies with Policy SC1 of the Hastings Local Plan:
The Hastings Planning Strategy.
Notes to the Applicant
1. Failure to comply with any condition imposed on this permission may result in
enforcement action without further warning.
2. Statement of positive engagement: In dealing with this application Hastings
Borough Council has actively sought to work with the applicant in a positive and
proactive manner, in accordance with paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy
Framework.
3. A formal application for connection to the public sewerage system is required in
order to service this development, please contact Southern Water, Sparrowgrove
House, Sparrowgrove, Otterbourne, Hampshire SO21 2SW (Tel: 0330 303 0119) or
www.southernwater.co.uk.
4. Consideration should be given to the provision of a domestic sprinkler system.
5. The applicant is advised that they must ensure the proposed works, hereby
approved, do not contravene laws protecting wildlife including the Countryside and
PC. 18

Page 18

PLANNING
6 JUNE 2019
Wildlife Act 1981. Where the applicant is in doubt they should contact Natural England
on wildlife@naturalengland.org.uk Telephone 020 802 61089 or Environment and
Natural Resources on parks@hastings.gov.uk Telephone 01424 451107 prior to
commencement of any works.
6. The bins must be presented on the highway on scheduled collection days.
128.3 Land to the rear of 419 to 447 Bexhill Road (HS/OA/19/00153)
Proposal

Application No.
Conservation area
Listed building
Public consultation

Outline application (seeking approval
of access) for the reconfiguration of
the car park, the erection of 16
residential units and proposed flood
risk mitigation measures.
HS/OA/19/00153
No
No
Yes – 9 letters of objection
Council application on Council owned
land

The Principal Planning Officer, Mrs Wood, presented the outline application (seeking
approval of access) for the reconfiguration of the car park, the erection of 16
residential units and proposed flood risk mitigation measures.
The Principal Planning Officer informed the Committee that a petition of 52 signatures
was received after the publication of the agenda. Additionally, 5 further objections
were also received.
The application was refused against officer recommendation at a previous Planning
Committee meeting because of concerns of flooding. The application was withdrawn
by the applicant before the decision notice was issued. Further information has been
submitted in respect of flood risk and drainage issues to address concerns. The
applicant has addressed the issues and Southern Water and East Sussex County
Council are satisfied with the scheme.
The indicative layout has been designed to address the concerns around flooding and
includes raised levels, surface water pumps and a swale. With the attenuation
measures all flows are away from the houses to the new proposed swale.
Councillors were shown plans, photographs and elevations of the application site.
The petitioner, Rebecca Bryan, was present and spoke against the application. Ms
Bryan said she was disappointed that the application was brought back and that there
had been no site visits to evaluate the flood risk and the flood report authors claimed
to have worked from an aerial view. There is surface water flooding at the site
whenever there is any rain. Ms Bryan said that Southern Water had confirmed to her
PC. 19

Page 19

PLANNING
6 JUNE 2019
that sewage pipes could flood again and raising the ground level could increase the
flood risk to neighbouring properties. The site is not in the Local Plan, and there are
other locations in the plan without a flood risk which could be used. Amsterdam Way is
an unfortunate example of the recent development in the area and developers have
struggled to sell those properties. She said it would create additional traffic and that
there was limited parking due to the bus lane.
No questions were asked of the petitioner.
The agent, Polly Canning, was present and spoke in favour of the application. Ms
Canning informed the Planning Committee that the development is in a sustainable
location and will make a valuable contribution of affordable housing. The scheme was
discussed last October and Councillors raised concerns at that meeting. As a result
over the past few months, work has been undertaken to examine those concerns.
There are existing flood defences in place however further steps have been taken in
order to prevent a worst case flood scenario. Ms Canning confirmed that there was an
unfortunate accident where a sewage pipe burst underground. This was a one-off
event and this is why Southern Water has a no build exclusion zone in place. She
stated that criticism of the flood risk experts was unfortunate as they have no record of
speaking to the petitioner and have visited the site. The measures proposed are all
agreed by the Environment Agency. She stated that the applicant had undertaken a
sequential test.
Councillors asked questions of the agent. In response to a question about the height
difference between existing properties and the proposed development it was
confirmed that there was a difference of no more than a metre.
The Principal Planning Officer informed the Committee that conditions 12-18 all relate
to flooding and drainage measures. Conditions 23 and 24 make sure mitigation
measures will be in place to protect wildlife in the area. Officers have no concerns
about overlooking or overshadowing from the proposed development.
The Principal Planning Officer confirmed that flood risk experts had visited the site.
Councillors debated the application. Councillor Beaver announced the he had come to
the conclusion that this is a bad development and raised concerns with the sequential
test.
Councillor Beaver proposed a motion to refuse under National Planning Policy
Framework paragraph 158, seconded by Councillor Marlow-Eastwood. The motion
was not carried (3 for, 5 against, 1 abstention).
Councillor Davies noted that coastal defences are already in place to mitigate coastal
flooding, and an array of flood mitigation measures have been incorporated that
experts say will be effective. These measures are of such an extent that they will
protect the existing properties from flooding.
PC. 20

Page 20

PLANNING
6 JUNE 2019
Councillor Davies proposed a motion, seconded by Councillor Roberts to grant the
application as set out in the resolution below.
RESOLVED – (5 for, 3 against, 1 abstention) that:
A) the Planning Services Manager be authorised to issue planning permission upon
completion of an agreement under S106 of the Town and Country Planning Act to
secure:




a financial contribution towards libraries (£4208)
seven affordable housing units (indicated as 4 x 1 bed flats, 2 x 2 bed houses 1
x 3 bed house)
S278 Agreement for highway works to include right turn lane, bus cage
relocation and alterations to the access

unless it has been conclusively shown that the development would not be viable and it
would still be acceptable in planning terms without the identified development
contributions. In the event that the Agreement is not completed by 6 December 2019
that permission be refused on the grounds that the application does not comply with
the relevant policies (policies H3 and CI1) of the Hastings Local Plan, The Hastings
Planning Strategy 2011-2028 or the Hastings Local Plan, Development Management
Plan unless an extension of time has been agreed in writing by the Planning Services
Manager in consultation with the Chair and Vice Chair of the Planning Committee.
B) Subject to the above
Grant Outline Planning Permission subject to the following conditions:
1. Approval of the details of the layout, scale and external appearance of the
building(s) and the soft and hard landscaping of the site (hereinafter called "the
reserved matters") shall be obtained from the Local Planning Authority in writing
before any development is commenced.
2. Plans and particulars of the reserved matters referred to in Condition 1 above,
relating to the layout, scale, external appearance of any buildings to be erected and
the soft and hard landscaping of the site, shall be submitted in writing to the Local
Planning Authority and shall be carried out as approved.
3. Application for approval of the reserved matters shall be made to the Local Planning
Authority before the expiration of three years from the date of this permission.
4. The development hereby permitted shall be begun either before the expiration of
three years from the date of this permission, or before the expiration of two years from
the date of approval of the last of the reserved matters to be approved, whichever is
the later.

PC. 21

Page 21

PLANNING
6 JUNE 2019
5. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in, in terms of access only,
in accordance with the following approved plans:
1611/P/001, 1611/P/002, 1611/P/003/B, 1611/P/102/A, 1611/P/103,
1611/P/101, 1611/P/104/B
6. No development shall commence until the vehicular access serving the
development has been constructed in accordance with details to be submitted and
approved in relation to condition 1 (reserved matters) above.
7. No part of the development shall be occupied until the road(s), footways and
parking areas serving the development have been constructed, surfaced, drained and
lit in accordance with plans and details submitted and approved by the Local Planning
Authority in relation to condition 1 (reserved matters) above. The parking areas shall
thereafter be retained for that use and shall not be used other than for the parking of
motor vehicles.
8. The development shall not be occupied until a turning space for vehicles has been
provided and constructed in accordance with details submitted and approved in
relation to condition 1 (reserved matters) above. The turning space shall thereafter be
retained for that use and shall not be used for any other purpose.
9. Prior to demolition or construction works commencing on site a Construction Traffic
Management Plan (CTMP) shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning
Authority in consultation with the Highway Authority. This shall include the size of
vehicles, wheel cleaning facilities, contractor parking and compound for
plant/machinery and materials clear of the public highway. (Given the restrictions of
the access hours of delivery/collection should avoid peak traffic flow times).
10. The development shall not be occupied until cycle and car parking areas have
been provided in accordance with the details which have been submitted to and
approved in relation to condition 1 (reserved matters) above. The areas shall
thereafter be retained for that use and shall not be used other than for the parking of
cycles or motor vehicles as relevant.
11. The details required by condition 1 shall include a Travel Plan Statement to be
submitted and approved by the Local Planning Authority. This shall be completed in
accordance with the latest guidance and good practice documentation as published by
the Department for Transport.
12. (i) Construction of the development shall not commence until details of the
proposed means of foul sewerage and surface water disposal/management have
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

PC. 22

Page 22

PLANNING
6 JUNE 2019
(ii) Development shall then be carried out in accordance with the details approved
under (i) and no occupation of any of the dwellings or flats hereby approved shall
occur until those works have been completed.
(iii) No occupation of any of the dwellings or flats hereby approved shall occur until the
Local Planning Authority has confirmed in writing that it is satisfied, that the necessary
drainage infrastructure capacity is now available to adequately service the
development.
13. The development permitted by this planning permission shall only be carried out in
accordance with the approved Flood Risk Assessment (February 2019) and the
following mitigation measures detailed within the FRA section 7, critically:
1. All sleeping accommodation will be at first floor level
2. Remaining living accommodation at a raised level of 300mm (minimum)
above the design flood level
3. Ground floor slab no less than 4.1m AOD
4. General flood resilience such as full port non-return valves and electrical
circuitry installed at a minimum of 900mm above the ground floor slab.
5. The new proposals for the dwelling will comprise concrete suspended ground
floors with appropriate voids/vents for any transmission of flood water passing
through, to be detailed in the architectural drawings.
6. Sign up to the Environment Agency Flood warning service
The mitigation measures shall be fully implemented prior to occupation and
subsequently in accordance with the timing / phasing arrangements embodied within
the scheme, or within any other period as may subsequently be agreed, in writing, by
the Local Planning Authority.
14. Surface water runoff from the proposed development should be limited 3.2 l/s for
rainfall events including those with a 1 in 100 (plus 40%) annual probability of
occurrence. Evidence of this (in the form hydraulic calculations) should be submitted
with the detailed drainage drawings. The hydraulic calculations should take into
account the connectivity of the different surface water drainage features. This should
include evidence that Southern Water has capacity to accept the proposed surface
water discharge into its network. The detailed drainage design should include
information on how surface water flows exceeding the capacity of the surface water
drainage features will be managed safely. The infiltration swale must be carried
forward to detailed design and implementation.

PC. 23

Page 23

PLANNING
6 JUNE 2019
15. Evidence that Southern Water agrees to the proposed surface water discharge
rate should be submitted and approved in relation to a reserved matters application
required by conditions 1 and 2.
16. A maintenance and management plan for the entire drainage system should be
submitted to the Local Planning Authority before any construction commences on site.
This plan should clearly state who will be responsible for managing all aspects of the
surface water drainage system, including piped drains, and the appropriate authority
should be satisfied with the submitted details. Evidence that these responsibility
arrangements will remain in place throughout the lifetime of the development should
be provided to within the maintenance and management plan.
17. Prior to commencement of development on site, the applicant should submit to the
Local Planning Authority for approval, measures to manage flood risk, on the site,
during the construction phase.
18. Prior to occupation of the development, evidence (including photographs) should
be submitted showing that the drainage system has been constructed as per the final
agreed detailed drainage designs submitted as part of condition 11.
19. Prior to commencement of development a Site Characterisation investigation and
risk assessment, must be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority in accordance with a scheme to assess the nature and extent of any
contamination on the site, whether or not it originates within the site. The investigation
and risk assessment must be undertaken by competent persons. The report of the
findings must include:
(i) a survey of the extent, scale and nature of contamination;
(ii) an assessment of the potential risks to:



human health
property (existing or proposed) including buildings, crops, livestock, pets,
woodland and service lines and pipes adjoining land
 groundwaters and surface waters
 ecological systems
 archaeological sites and ancient monuments
(iii) an appraisal of remedial options, and proposal of the preferred option(s)
This must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency’s
“Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11”
20. Submission of Remediation Scheme - Prior to commencement of development a
detailed remediation scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended
use by removing unacceptable risks to human health, buildings and other property and
the natural and historical environment must be submitted in writing to and approved by
PC. 24

Page 24

PLANNING
6 JUNE 2019
the Local Planning Authority. The scheme must include all works to be undertaken,
proposed remediation objectives and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site
management procedures. The scheme must ensure that the site will not qualify as
contaminated land under Part 2A of the Environmental protection Act 1990 in relation
to the intended use of the land after remediation.
21. Implementation of Approved Remediation Scheme - The approved remediation
scheme must be carried out in accordance with its terms prior to commencement of
development other than that required to carry out remediation, unless otherwise
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The Local Planning Authority must be given two weeks written notification of
commencement of the remediation scheme works. Following completion of measures
identified in the approved remediation scheme, a verification report that demonstrates
the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be produced, and is subject to
the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority.
22. Reporting of unexpected contamination - In the event that contamination is found
at any time when carrying out the approved development that was not previously
identified it must be reported in writing immediately to the Local Planning Authority. An
investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in accordance with the
requirements of condition 18, and where remediation is necessary a remediation
scheme must be prepared in accordance with the requirements of condition 19, which
is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority.
Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme a
verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in writing of the
Local Planning Authority in accordance with condition 20.
Long-term monitoring and maintenance - A monitoring and maintenance scheme to
include monitoring the long-term effectiveness of the proposed remediation over a
period of years, and the provision of reports on the same, must be prepared, both of
which are subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority.
Following completion of the measures identified in that scheme and when the
remediation objectives have been achieved, reports that demonstrate the
effectiveness of the monitoring and maintenance carried out must be produced, and
submitted to the Local Planning Authority.
This must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency’s
“Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11”
Before the development hereby permitted commences the applicant must either:
a) Investigate the site for landfill gas to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority
(LPA), to ascertain whether gas protection measures are required. Where measures
are required, the details shall be submitted to, and approved by, the LPA. or
PC. 25

Page 25

PLANNING
6 JUNE 2019
b) The applicant shall install gas protection measures as a precautionary measure
without first investigating the site. The details of these measures shall be submitted to,
and approved by, the LPA.
In either circumstance all required measures shall be installed before the development
is first occupied and a building surveyors certification that the work has been done will
need to be supplied to the LPA.
23. No development shall take place, including any works of demolition, until a
Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) has been submitted to, and
approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. The approved CEMP shall be
adhered to throughout the construction period. The CEMP shall provide for:
a. An indicative programme for carrying out of the works
b. The arrangements for public consultation and liaison during the construction works
c. Measures to minimise the noise (including vibration) generated by the construction
process to include hours of work, proposed method of piling for foundations, the
careful selection of plant and machinery and use of noise mitigation barrier(s)
d. Details of any flood lighting, including location, height, type and direction of light
sources and intensity of illumination
e. The parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors
f. Loading and unloading of plant and materials
g. Storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development
h. The erection and maintenance of security hoarding including decorative displays
and facilities for public viewing, where appropriate
i. Wheel washing facilities
j. Measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction
k. A scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition and
construction works
24. All ecological measures and/or works shall be carried out in accordance with the
details contained in the ecological assessment report by the Ash Partnership dated
December 2017 as already submitted with the planning application and agreed in
principle with the Local Planning Authority prior to determination.
25. Details of sustainable construction shall be submitted as part of a reserved matters
application in relation to condition 1 (reserved matters).

PC. 26

Page 26

PLANNING
6 JUNE 2019
26. With the exception of internal works the building works required to carry out the
development allowed by this permission must only be carried out within the following
times:08.00 - 18.00 Monday to Friday
08.00 - 13.00 on Saturdays
No working on Sundays or Public Holidays.
27. The details required by condition 1 shall include details of location of bin storage
and collection. A system must also be included for bin collection so that future
residents must present their bins to receive their scheduled collection and that would
be presented on the highway (front path) of the access road to the estate adjacent to
the public car park within the site.
Reasons:
1. The application is in outline only.
2. The application is in outline only.
3. This condition is imposed in accordance with the provisions of Section 92 of the
Town & Country Planning Act 1990.
4. This condition is imposed in accordance with the provisions of Section 92 of the
Town & Country Planning Act 1990.
5. For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.
6. In the interests of road safety.
7. To secure satisfactory standards of access for the proposed development.
8. To ensure the safety of persons and vehicles entering and leaving the access and
proceeding along the highway.
9. In the interests of highway safety and for the benefit and convenience of the public
at large.
10. In order that the development site is accessible by non-car modes and to meet the
objectives of sustainable development.
11. To encourage and promote sustainable transport.
12. To prevent increased risk of flooding.
13. In line with section 9 of the Planning Practice Guidance to the National Planning
Policy Framework (NPPF) for Flood Risk and Coastal Change to prevent flooding
PC. 27

Page 27

PLANNING
6 JUNE 2019
elsewhere and reduce the risk of flooding to the proposed development and future
occupants.
14. To prevent increased risk of flooding.
15. To prevent increased risk of flooding.
16. To prevent increased risk of flooding.
17. To prevent increased risk of flooding during construction.
18. To prevent increased risk of flooding.
19. To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property
and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely
without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors.
20. To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property
and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely
without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors.
21. To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property
and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely
without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors.
22. To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property
and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely
without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors.
23. To safeguard the amenity of adjoining residential amenities during the construction
of the development.
24. To prevent harm to protected species.
25. To ensure environmentally sustainable and green development to comply with
Hastings Planning Strategy (2014) policies SC3 and SC4.
26. To safeguard the amenity of adjoining residents.
27. To provide waste storage and collection facilities for the residents of the estate.
Notes to the Applicant

PC. 28

Page 28

PLANNING
6 JUNE 2019
1. Failure to comply with any condition imposed on this permission may result in
enforcement action without further warning.
2. Statement of positive engagement: In dealing with this application Hastings
Borough Council has actively sought to work with the applicant in a positive and
proactive manner, in accordance with paragraphs 186 and 187 of the National
Planning Policy Framework.
3. A formal application for connection to the public foul sewerage system is required in
order to service this development, please contact Southern Water: Developer
Services, Southern Water, Southern House, Sparrowgrove, Otterbourne, Hampshire,
SO21 2SW. Tel: 0330 303 0119. E-mail: developerservices@southernwater.co.uk.
4. This permission is the subject of an obligation under Section 106 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended).
5. The developer's attention is drawn to the committee report and the consultation
responses received as part of the application. Both include comments which will be
necessary to take on board when developing a detailed submission.
6. The Developer must ensure that their proposal, both during construction and after
completion of works on site, does not:









encroach onto Network Rail land
affect the safety, operation or integrity of the company's railway and its
infrastructure
undermine its support zone
damage the company's infrastructure
place additional load on cuttings
adversely affect any railway land or structure
over-sail or encroach upon the air-space of any Network Rail land
cause to obstruct or interfere with any works or proposed works or Network Rail
development both now and in the future

The developer should comply with the following comments and requirements for the
safe operation of the railway and the protection of Network Rail's adjoining land.
Future maintenance
The development must ensure any future maintenance can be conducted solely on
the applicant's land. The applicant must ensure that any construction and any
subsequent maintenance can be carried out to any proposed buildings or structures
without adversely affecting the safety of, or encroaching upon Network Rail's adjacent
land and air-space, and therefore all/any building should be situated at least 2 metres
(3m for overhead lines and third rail) from Network Rail's boundary.
PC. 29

Page 29

PLANNING
6 JUNE 2019
The reason for the 2m (3m for overhead lines and third rail) stand off requirement is
to allow for construction and future maintenance of a building and without requirement
for access to the operational railway environment which may not necessarily be
granted or if granted subject to railway site safety requirements and special provisions
with all associated railway costs charged to the applicant. Any less than 2m (3m for
overhead lines and third rail) and there is a strong possibility that the applicant (and
any future resident) will need to utilise Network Rail land and air-space to facilitate
works. The applicant / resident would need to receive approval for such works from
Network Rail Asset Protection, the applicant / resident would need to submit the
request at least 20 weeks before any works were due to commence on site and they
would be liable for all costs (e.g. all possession costs, all site safety costs, all asset
protection presence costs). However, Network Rail is not required to grant permission
for any third party access to its land. No structure/building should be built hard-against
Network Rail's boundary as in this case there is an even higher probability of access
to Network Rail land being required to undertake any construction / maintenance
works. Equally any structure/building erected hard against the boundary with Network
Rail will impact adversely upon our maintenance teams' ability to maintain our
boundary fencing and boundary treatments.
Drainage
Storm/surface water must not be discharged onto Network Rail's property or into
Network Rail's culverts or drains except by agreement with Network Rail. Suitable
drainage or other works must be provided and maintained by the Developer to prevent
surface water flows or run-off onto Network Rail's property. Proper provision must be
made to accept and continue drainage discharging from Network Rail's property; full
details to be submitted for approval to Network Rail Asset Protection. Suitable foul
drainage must be provided separate from Network Rail's existing drainage.
Soakaways, as a means of storm/surface water disposal must not be constructed
near/within 10-20 metres of Network Rail's boundary or at any point which could
adversely affect the stability of Network Rail's property. After the completion and
occupation of the development, any new or exacerbated problems attributable to the
new development shall be investigated and remedied at the applicants' expense.
Plant & materials
All operations, including the use of cranes or other mechanical plant working adjacent
to Network Rail's property, must at all times be carried out in a 'fail safe' manner such
that in the event of mishandling, collapse or failure, no plant or materials are capable
of falling within 3.0m of the boundary with Network Rail.
Scaffolding
Any scaffold which is to be constructed within 10 metres of the railway boundary fence
must be erected in such a manner that at no time will any poles over-sail the railway
PC. 30

Page 30

PLANNING
6 JUNE 2019
and protective netting around such scaffold must be installed. The
applicant/applicant's contractor must consider if they can undertake the works and
associated scaffold/access for working at height within the footprint of their property
boundary.
Piling
Where vibro-compaction/displacement piling plant is to be used in development,
details of the use of such machinery and a method statement should be submitted for
approval to Network Rail Asset Protection prior to the commencement of works and
the works shall only be carried out in accordance with the approved method
statement.
Fencing
In view of the nature of the development, it is essential that the developer provide (at
their own expense) and thereafter maintain a substantial, trespass proof fence along
the development side of the existing boundary fence, to a minimum height of 1.8
metres. The 1.8m fencing should be adjacent to the railway boundary and the
developer/applicant should make provision for its future maintenance and renewal
without encroachment upon Network Rail land. Network Rail's existing fencing / wall
must not be removed or damaged and at no point either during construction or after
works are completed on site should the foundations of the fencing or wall or any
embankment therein, be damaged, undermined or compromised in any way. Any
vegetation on Network Rail land and within Network Rail's boundary must also not be
disturbed. Any fencing installed by the applicant must not prevent Network Rail from
maintaining its own fencing/boundary treatment.
Lighting
Any lighting associated with the development (including vehicle lights) must not
interfere with the sighting of signalling apparatus and/or train drivers vision on
approaching trains. The location and colour of lights must not give rise to the potential
for confusion with the signalling arrangements on the railway. The developers should
obtain Network Rail's approval of their detailed proposals regarding lighting.
Noise and vibration
The potential for any noise/ vibration impacts caused by the proximity between the
proposed development and any existing railway must be assessed in the context of
the National Planning Policy Framework which hold relevant national guidance
information. The current level of usage may be subject to change at any time without
notification including increased frequency of trains, night time train running and heavy
freight trains.
Vehicle incursion
PC. 31

Page 31

PLANNING
6 JUNE 2019
Where a proposal calls for hard standing area / parking of vehicles area near the
boundary with the operational railway, Network Rail would recommend the installation
of a highways approved vehicle incursion barrier or high kerbs to prevent vehicles
accidentally driving or rolling onto the railway or damaging lineside fencing.
Network Rail strongly recommends the developer contacts Network Rail Asset
Protection London South East at AssetProtectionsussex@networkrail.co.uk prior to
any works commencing on site, and also to agree an Asset Protection Agreement with
us to enable approval of detailed works. More information can also be obtained from
our website at www.networkrail.co.uk/aspx/1538.aspx.
7. Conflicts between the bus cage and the proposed access to Bexhill Road are
outstanding, which could impact on the westbound visibility at the access.
This must be addressed by moving the bus cage westwards as part of a reserved
matters application. Given the status of the bus corridor project, it is considered that
any works including the proposed double yellow lines, right turn pocket and amended
bus stops would be the responsibility of the applicant and would need to be agreed
with East Sussex County Council on 01273 48225
8. The applicant is advised that the access roads must be able withstand the weight of
a 26 ton vehicle and a system must be in place to prevent car parking at the front of
the estate entrance to prevent overcrowding of vehicles which could block the
entrance and prevent refuse collections.
9. The applicant is required to enter into a formal easement agreement with Southern
Water, to protect the foul water rising mains crossing the site.
Please note no structures/building or foundation works will be permitted within the
easement strips areas. Southern Water will require 24 hours a day, 7 days a week
access to the land to maintain our critical apparatus.
10. The applicant is advised to contact the Transport Development Control Team
(01273 482254) to commence the process associated with the proposed Traffic
Regulation Order. The applicant would be responsible for meeting all costs associated
with this process, which is a minimum of £5000. The applicant should note that the
outcome of this process cannot be guaranteed as it is open to public objection.
129.

OTHER PLANNING APPLICATIONS

129.1 19 Moorhurst Road (HS/FA/18/00924)
Proposal
Application No.
Conservation area

Change of use from B1 (light
industrial) to a B2 use as a welding
business.
HS/FA/18/00924
No
PC. 32

Page 32

PLANNING
6 JUNE 2019
Listed building
Public consultation

No
Yes – 8 letters of objection received.

The Principal Planning Officer, Mrs Wood, presented the application for the change of
use from B1 (light industrial) to a B2 use as a welding business. She explained that
the distance between the application site and residential properties was 33.7m.
Councillors were shown plans, photographs and elevations of the application site.
As the report did not make clear, the Principal Planning Officer confirmed the
application site is not in a Conversation Area.
Councillor Scott proposed a motion, seconded by Councillor Webb, to grant the
application as set out in the resolution below.
RESOLVED – (unanimously) that Full Planning Permission be granted subject to
the following conditions:
1. Within three months of the date of this permission evidence is to be submitted to the
Local Planning Authority that the required 2 metre high mobile barrier, constructed
with a surface density of no less than 15kg/m2, has been provided on site. The mobile
barrier is to then be used on site thereafter.
2. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (as amended) (or any order revoking
and re-enacting that order with or without modification), the premises shall only be
used as a welding business (Class B2) and no other use as defined within Schedule 2,
Part 3, Classes B2 or B8 shall be carried out on the site.
3. The premises shall not be used except between the following hours:07.00 - 17.00 - Monday - Friday,
07.00 - 13.00 - Saturdays,
Not at all on Sundays or Bank Holidays.
4. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following approved plans:
Site Plan, Block Plan, Floorplan, Plant Noise Assessment (February 2019).
Reasons:
1. To safeguard the amenity of adjoining residents.
2. To safeguard the amenity of adjoining residents.
PC. 33

Page 33

PLANNING
6 JUNE 2019
3. To safeguard the amenity of adjoining residents.
4. For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.
Notes to the Applicant
1. Failure to comply with any condition imposed on this permission may result in
enforcement action without further warning.
2. Statement of positive engagement: In dealing with this application Hastings
Borough Council has actively sought to work with the applicant in a positive and
proactive manner, in accordance with paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy
Framework.
129.2 817 The Ridge (HS/FA/19/00179)
Proposal
Application No.
Conservation area
Listed building
Public consultation

Conversion into two dwellings and
alterations including dormer
extensions to front and rear
HS/FA/19/00179
No
No
Yes – No letters of objection received
Application by serving employee in
restricted post

The Principal Planning Officer, Mrs Wood, presented the application for conversion
into two dwellings and alterations including dormer extensions to front and rear.
It was confirmed that the application had been brought to the Planning Committee as
the applicant is an officer of the Council in a politically restricted post.
Access agreements have been agreed with the Highways Authority and the
development provides in excess of the minimal floor plan size as required by
government. There are no concerns from any statutory consultees.
Councillors were shown plans, photographs and elevations of the application site.
Councillor Beaver proposed a motion, seconded by Councillor Roberts, to grant the
application as set out in the resolution below.
RESOLVED – (unanimously) that Full Planning Permission be granted subject to
the following conditions:
1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three
years from the date of this permission.

PC. 34

Page 34

PLANNING
6 JUNE 2019
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following approved plans:
4178/19/LBP, 4178/19/3, 4178/19/1-A & 4178/19/EX/A
3. The materials to be used in the external alterations and extensions hereby
permitted shall match those used in the existing building.
4. With the exception of internal works the building works required to carry out the
development allowed by this permission must only be carried out within the following
times:08.00 - 18.00 Monday to Friday
08.00 - 13.00 on Saturdays
No working on Sundays or Public Holidays.
5. Prior to completion of the conversion hereby permitted, details of the required cycle
storage units are to be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The storage provision is to then be installed on site in accordance with the
approved details, prior to occupation of the units.
6. Prior to completion of the conversion hereby permitted, the final arrangement of the
proposed parking area is to be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. These details shall include the following;





The final layout, taking in to account the comments from the County Highways
Authority
The hard landscaping materials proposed
The method for dealing with surface water run-off
The development shall then be completed in accordance with the approved
details.


Reasons:
1. This condition is imposed in accordance with the provisions of Section 91 of the
Town and Country Planning Act 1990.
2. For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.
3. To ensure a satisfactory standard of development.
4. To safeguard the amenity of adjoining residents.
5. To ensure a satisfactory standard of development.
6. To ensure a satisfactory standard of development.
PC. 35

Page 35

PLANNING
6 JUNE 2019
Notes to the Applicant
1. Failure to comply with any condition imposed on this permission may result in
enforcement action without further warning.
2. Statement of positive engagement: In dealing with this application Hastings
Borough Council has actively sought to work with the applicant in a positive and
proactive manner, in accordance with paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy
Framework.
3. A formal application for connection to the public foul sewerage system is required in
order to service this development, please contact Southern Water:
Developer Services, Southern Water, Southern House, Sparrowgrove, Otterbourne,
Hampshire, SO21 2SW. Tel: 0330 303 0119. E-mail:
developerservices@southernwater.co.uk.
4. The maximum gradient of the private drive should not exceed 1 in 9.
5. The applicant is reminded that the study within the right hand unit, at first floor level
is too small to be occupied as a bedroom.
129.3 12-13 York Buildings (HS/CD/18/00487)
Proposal

Discharge of condition 4 (external
windows and door details) of Planning
Permission HS/FA/16/00660
HS/CD/18/00487
Yes – Hastings Town Centre
Yes – Grade II
No – Council application on Council
owned land

Application No.
Conservation area
Listed building
Public consultation

The Principal Planning Officer, Mrs Wood, presented the application for discharge of
condition 4 (external windows and door details) of Planning Permission
HS/FA/16/00660.
Councillors were shown plans, photographs and elevations of the application site.
Councillor Beaver proposed a motion, seconded by Councillor Scott, to grant the
application as set out in the resolution below.
RESOLVED – (unanimously) that:
Condition 4 of planning permission HS/FA/16/00660 can be partly discharged. Joinery
details for the new windows remain outstanding.
129.4 12-13 York Buildings (HS/CD/18/00490)
PC. 36

Page 36

PLANNING
6 JUNE 2019
Proposal

Discharge of conditions 3
(methodology
statement) and 4 (details of
balustrades, proposals of staircase,
surfacing works, installation of
ventilations, smoke vent and any
other additional structural work as
required. Details of new floor boards
and window and door joinery details
and schedule.) of Listed Building
consent HS/LB/16/00661
HS/CD/18/00490
Yes – Hastings Town Centre
Yes – Grade II
No – Council application on Council
owned land

Application No.
Conservation area
Listed building
Public consultation

The Principal Planning Officer, Mrs Wood, presented the application for discharge of
conditions 3 (methodology statement) and 4 (details of balustrades, proposals of
staircase, surfacing works, installation of ventilations, smoke vent and any other
additional structural work as required. Details of new floor boards and window and
door joinery details and schedule.) of Listed Building consent HS/LB/16/00661. She
explained that the Conservation Officer had no objection.
Councillors were shown plans, photographs and elevations of the application site.
Councillor Roberts proposed a motion, seconded by Councillor Davies, to grant the
application as set out in the resolution below.
RESOLVED – (unanimously) that:
Condition 3 can be partially discharged, subject to further detail on the location of the
safe storage areas and proposals regarding the protection of original features during
construction works.
Condition 4 can be partially discharged, as follows:
4(a) - discharged
4(b) - partially discharged, subject to additional window, fanlight and architrave profile
details
4(c) - discharged
4(d) - discharged
4(e) - partially discharged, subject to details of the sprinkler system
PC. 37

Page 37

PLANNING
6 JUNE 2019
4(f) - discharged
4(g) - discharged
4(h) - discharged
4(i) - discharged
4(j) – discharged

130.

PLANNING APPEALS AND DELEGATED DECISIONS

The Principal Planning Officer informed the Committee that no appeals had been lost.
The most significant planning appeal to be dismissed was The Malvern.
The report was noted by the Committee.

(The Chair declared the meeting closed at 8.02pm)

PC. 38

Page 38

TH

(u m

)

EC

LO
SE

Car Park

Pa
th

Chasman

th
Pa
(u m

Seascape

153.4m

16

±

Agenda
Item
5a rights [2019]. OS [100021328]
© Crown Copyright
and database

)

Posts

1

Und

Visitor Centre

El Sub Sta

Car
k
Pa r

(u

f
De

th
Pa

m)

0

Proposed Visitor Centre
Hastings Country Park
Lower Coastguard Lane
Hastings TN35 4AB

Date: Jun 2019
Scale: 1:1,250

Application No. HS/FA/19/00303

10

20

30

40
Meters

Variation of condition 4 (Foul sewerage) of planning permission
HS/FA/17/01018 (Amendment to the disposal and management of
foul sewerage) (amended description)

Assistant Director Housing & Built Environment
Hastings Borough Council,
Muriel Matters House, Breeds Place,
Hastings, East Sussex TN34 3UY
Tel: 01424 451090
email: planning@hastings.gov.uk
Use of this data is subject to terms and conditions. You are granted a non-exclusive,
royalty free, revocable licence solely to view the Licensed Data for non-commercial
purposes for the period during which Hastings Borough Council makes it available.
You are not permitted to copy, sub-license, distribute, sell or otherwise make available
the Licenced Data to third parties in any form. Third party rights to enforce the
terms of this licence shall be reserved to OS.

Page 39

This page is intentionally left blank

AGENDA ITEM NO: 5 (a)
Report to:

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting:

10 July 2019

Report from:

Assistant Director of Housing and Built Environment

Application Address:

Application No:

Proposed Visitor Centre Hastings Country
Park, Lower Coastguard Lane, Fairlight,
Hastings, TN35 4AB
Variation of condition 4 (Foul sewerage) of
planning permission HS/FA/17/01018
(Amendment to the disposal and management
of foul sewerage) (amended description)
HS/FA/19/00303

Recommendation:

Grant Full Planning Permission

Ward:
Conservation Area:
Listed Building:

ORE 2018
No
No

Applicant:

Hastings Borough Council per The Cave
Co-operative Siddeley House Kingston Upon
Thames Surrey KT2 6LX

Proposal:

Public Consultation
Site Notice:
Press Advertisement:
Letters of Objection:
Petitions of Objection Received:
Letters of Support:
Petitions of Support Received:
Neutral comments received
Application Status:

Yes

Yes - General Interest Amended Plans
5
0
0
0
0
Not delegated - 5 or more letters of objection
received
Council application on Council owned land

1. Site and surrounding area
The proposed location for the new visitor centre is on Coastguard Lane, to the south west of
the existing visitor facility, and will be set within an existing grass verge/agricultural land. The
site lies with the High Weald Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) and is a Local
Nature Reserve (LNR).

Page 41

The main function of the approved visitor centre will be a facility which provides information
and education regarding the local landscape and special character and beauty of the
Hastings Country Park/AONB.
The Council can advise that the development of the visitor centre has lawfully commenced,
albeit that works to date are only below ground.
Constraints
AONB
Local Wildlife Site
Local Nature Reserve
PROW

2. Background
When originally submitted the application proposed both a variation of condition 4 and
discharge of condition 5 however it is not procedurally possible to consider both using the
submitted application type. As such the request to discharge condition 5 was removed from
this application and will be dealt with separately.

3. Proposed development
The proposed development is for the variation of condition 4 of planning permission
HS/FA/17/1018. Planning permission HS/FA/17/1018 approved changes to the detail of the
original planning permission HS/FA/14/01033, including changes to materials and elevations.
Condition 4 of planning permission HS/FA/17/1018 is as follows:
Condition 4
The foul sewerage disposal/management shall be carried out in accordance with the details
approved under application HS/CD/17/01101 and no use of the building hereby approved
shall occur until those works have been completed.
Reason: To ensure that no property is occupied until adequate access and drainage facilities
have been provided
This application seeks to vary condition 4, removing the request for a septic tank and instead
disposing of foul water through a direct connection to the mains
Relevant planning history
HS/FA/17/01018

HS/NM/18/00059

Section 73 application for the variation of condition 13 (approved
drawings) of planning permission HS/FA/14/01033 - Amendments to
roof structure, window openings, ventilation unit and weatherboarding
material. Granted 7.3.2018
Non Material Amendment application to vary the wording of condition
4 of planning permission HS/FA/14/01033 (Erection of a new visitor
centre) requiring the SuDS details to be submitted prior to
commencement of development above ground level rather than prior
to the construction of the development. Granted 9.2.2018

Page 42

HS/CD/17/01101

HS/CD/17/01101 - Discharge of conditions: 4 (sewerage, surface
water & drainage details), 7 (Soft landscaping), 10 (Construction
Management Plan), 14 (Archaeology) of Planning Permission
HS/FA/14/01033 -Erection of a new visitor centre – Part discharged on
02/02/2018 as set out below:
Conditions 4: A Septic tank is proposed to accommodate the
sewerage from the proposed building.

HS/FA/14/01033

Part discharged on 2.2.2018 (the condition at that time also related
to surface water drainage and further details were required in respect
of that aspect in order to fully discharge the condition).
Erection of a new visitor centre – Granted 6th March 2015 (expires 6th
March 2018) This permission has lawfully commenced.

National and local policies
Hastings Local Plan – Planning Strategy (2014)
Policy EN3 – Nature Conservation and Improvement of Biodiversity
Policy EN5 - Local Nature Reserves (LNR)
Policy EN6 - Local Wildlife Sites (LWR)
Policy EN7 – Conservation and Enhancement of Landscape
Policy FA5 - Strategic Policy for Eastern Area
Policy SC1 - Overall Strategy for Managing Change in a Sustainable Way
Policy T3 – Sustainable Transport
Hastings Local Plan – Development Management Plan (2015)
Policy LP1 - Considering planning applications
Policy HN8 – Biodiversity and Green Space
Policy HN9 - Areas of Landscape Value
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
Paragraph 11 sets out a general presumption in favour of sustainable development and
states that development proposals which accord with the development plan should be
approved without delay.
Paragraph 12 of the NPPF states that applications for planning permission must be
determined in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate
otherwise. Three dimensions of sustainability given in paragraph 8 are to be sought jointly:
economic (by ensuring that sufficient land of the right type is available in the right places and
at the right time to support growth and innovation); social (providing housing, creating high
quality environment with accessible local services); and environmental (contributing to,
protecting and enhancing natural, built and historic environment) whilst paragraph 9 advises
that plans and decisions need to take local circumstances into account, so they respond to
the different opportunities for achieving sustainable development in different areas.
Section 12 of the NPPF sets out the requirement for good design in development. Paragraph
124 states: "The creation of high quality buildings and places is fundamental to what the
planning and development process should achieve. Good design is a key aspect of
sustainable development, creates better places in which to live and work and helps make
development acceptable to communities."

Page 43

Paragraph 127 of the NPPF requires that decisions should ensure developments:
· Function well;
· Add to the overall quality of the area for the lifetime of that development;
· Are visually attractive in terms of:
* Layout
* Architecture
* Landscaping
· Are sympathetic to local character/history whilst not preventing change or innovation;
· Maintain a strong sense of place having regard to:
* Building types
* Materials
* Arrangement of streets
· Optimise the potential of the site to accommodate an appropriate number and mix of
development;
· Create safe places with a high standard of amenity for future and existing users
Paragraph 130 states permission should be refused for development of poor design that fails
to take the opportunities available for improving the character and quality of an area and the
way that it functions.
Paragraph 130 also seeks to ensure that the quality of an approved development is not
materially diminished between permission and completion through changes to the permitted
scheme

4. Consultation comments
Southern Water - No comments
ESCC SUds - No objection

5. Representations
In respect of this application a site notice was displayed and a notice placed in the local
newspaper. Six letters of objections have been recieved from five different properties.
The relevant objections are listed in summary as follows:
·
·
·
·
·
·

The purpose of the application is unclear. The title, GTA statement and application form
are mutually contradictory.
The Application mixes a variation of conditions with a discharge of conditions. These
should be separate applications.
The proposed changes to the foul drainage are unclear and require further details.
Insufficient details have been submitted to discharge the surface water condition.
Requirements imposed by consultees on a previous discharge application for surface
water conditions have still not been met.
Building Control, Environment Agency and Natural England should have been consulted
as part of this application.

Page 44

6. Determining issues
The main issue to be considered in respect of this application is whether the change of
means of foul water disposal from a septic tank to mains would be acceptable having regard
to the character of the area, the environment and relevant consultation responses.
a) Principle
The principle of the new visitor centre has been previously agreed under extant planning
permission HS/FA/14/01033. There have been no material changes in policy or changes at
the site or surrounding area that would alter the previous decision. That matter is not for
consideration. The applicant has requested a change to the way in which foul water is
disposed of from the site and instead of proposing a septic tank, it is now proposed to
connect to the mains. There is no policy presumption that would resist such an alteration and
as such in principle the proposed development is considered acceptable.
b) Impact on character and appearance of area/heritage
There would be no change to the siting, design, scale of the building, etc., as a result of this
application, nor would the change impact on the character of The High Weald Area of
Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) and Local Nature Reserve (LNR). The variation of
condition 4 in the manner proposed would not prejudice any neighbouring residential
properties; result in any highway, ecology, heritage, tree or other impacts that have not
already been considered under the parent permission.
c) Environmental Impact Assessment
The National Planning Practice guidance (Paragraph: 017 Reference ID: 4-017-20170728)
states that "Projects which are described in the first column of Schedule 2 but which do not
exceed the relevant thresholds, or meet the criteria in the second column of the Schedule, or
are not at least partly in a sensitive area, are not Schedule 2 development." In this instance
the site is in a sensitive area however the scale of the proposed works is small and as such
screening for the purposes of EIA development is not required in this instance.
d) Other Matters
A number of letters of representation raise concerns that various consultees have not been
consulted in respect of this application. The original application for the Visitor Centre,
HS/FA/14/1033 proposed and was approved with foul water disposed of through a
connection to the mains. Both the Environment Agency (EA) and Natural England (NE) were
satisfied with that proposal and raised no objections to it. As the same type of connection is
now proposed, no further consultation is deemed necessary noting that this Council is clear
what the views of both the EA and NE are on the matter. Moreover, this type of connection is
already approved under the above noted application and therefore the principal has already
been agreed.
For information the relevant quote from the committee report attached to HS/FA/14/1033 is
noted below:
'Drainage
Following concerns from Natural England, foul sewerage will now discharge off site and into
the existing network. The Environment Agency are also agreeable to this solution.'

Page 45

7. Local finance considerations
The Hastings Visitor Centre is funded by Hastings Borough Council together with an award
of £475,000 from Interreg North West Europe. The Interreg award is part of the innovative
project called 'Up Straw' which is increasing awareness of public building with straw across
North West Europe.

8. Conclusion
The proposal is considered accepatable and it is recommended the application be granted.
These proposals comply with the development plan in accordance with Section 38 (6) of the
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 which states:
"If regard is to be had to the development plan for the purpose of any determination to be
made under the Planning Acts the determination must be made in accordance with the plan
unless material considerations indicate otherwise”.
The Human Rights considerations have been taken into account fully in balancing the
planning issues.

9. Recommendation

Grant Full Planning Permission subject to the following conditions:
1.

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before 6 March 2018.

2.

With the exception of internal works the building works required to carry out
the development allowed by this permission must only be carried out within
the following times:08.00 - 18.00 Monday to Friday
08.00 - 13.00 on Saturdays
No working on Sundays or Public Holidays.

3.

The visitor centre shall not be used except between the following hours:9am - 5pm Monday - Sunday

4.

The foul sewerage disposal shall be via the mains and shall be connected to
the mains and fully operational before the use of the building hereby
approved commences.

Page 46

5.

6.

i)

Prior to the construction of the development above ground level
details
of
the
proposed
means
of
surface
water
disposal/management shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority.

ii)

Development shall be carried out in accordance with the details
approved under (i) and no use of the building hereby approved
shall occur until those works have been completed.

iii)

The building shall not be used until the Local Planning Authority
has confirmed in writing that it is satisfied, that the necessary
drainage infrastructure capacity is now available to adequately
service the development.

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the soft
landscaping details approved under application HS/CD/17/01101.
All planting seeding or turfing comprised in the approved soft landscaping
scheme shall be carried out prior to the occupation of any part of the
development, or with the written agreement of the Local Planning Authority,
in the first planting and seeding seasons following the occupation of any
buildings or the completion of the development, whichever is the sooner.
Any trees or plants which within a period of 5 years from the completion of
the development die, are removed or become seriously damaged or
diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of similar
size and species, unless the Local Planning Authority gives written consent
to any variation.

7.

The development shall be constructed in accordance with the materials
schedule approved under planning application HS/FA/17/1018.

8.

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the Construction
Management Plan approved under application HS/CD/17/01101.

9.

The proposed amphitheatre is to be used as an outdoor classroom only and
for no other use.

10.

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the programme of
archaeological work and Written Scheme of Archaeological Investigation
approved under application HS/CD/17/01101.

11.

The development hereby permitted shall not be brought into use until the
archaeological site investigation and post investigation assessment
(including provision for analysis, publication and dissemination of results and
archive deposition) has been completed in accordance with the programme
set out in the Written Scheme of Investigation approved under condition [10]
to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority, in consultation with the
County Planning Authority.

Page 47

12.

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with
the following approved plans:
240/219 E, 101C, 108C, 240/204D, 240/205 B, 240/106/D, 240/107/D,
240/214B, 240/223

Reasons:
1.

This condition is imposed in accordance with the provisions of Section 91 of
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2.

To safeguard the amenity of adjoining and future residents. (Hastings Local
Plan 2004 Policies DG1 and DG3).

3.

To safeguard the amenity of nearby residents and user of the Country Park

4.

To ensure that no property is occupied until adequate access and drainage
facilities have been provided.

5.

To ensure that no property is occupied until adequate access and drainage
facilities have been provided.

6.

In the interests of the visual amenity.

7.

To protect and preserve the visual amenity of the locality.

8.

To protect the amenity of neighbouring residents

9.

To safeguard the amenity of adjoining and future residents. (Hastings Local
Plan 2004 Policies DG1 and DG3).

10.

To ensure that the archaeological and historical interest of the site is
safeguarded and recorded to comply with the National Planning Policy
Framework.

11.

To ensure that the archaeological and historical interest of the site is
safeguarded and recorded to comply with the National Planning Policy
Framework.

11.

To ensure a satisfactory form of development in the interests of the
character and amenity of the area.

12.

For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

Notes to the Applicant
1.

Failure to comply with any condition imposed on this permission may result
in enforcement action without further warning.

2.

Statement of positive engagement: In dealing with this application Hastings
Borough Council has actively sought to work with the applicant in a positive
and proactive manner, in accordance with paragraphs 186 and 187 of the

Page 48

National Planning Policy Framework.
3.

The applicant should contact the Sussex Police Architect Liaison Officer at
the Police Station, Bohemia Road, Hastings to discuss the "Secured by
Design" principles for new developments.

4.

The applicant is advised that they must ensure the proposed works, hereby
approved, do not contravene laws protecting wildlife including the
Countryside and Wildlife Act 1981. Where the applicant is in doubt they
should contact Natural England on wildlife@naturalengland.org.uk
Telephone 020 802 61089 or Environment and Natural Resources on
parks@hastings.gov.uk Telephone 01424 451107 prior to commencement
of any works.

5.

The proposed works requires a connection Southern Water mains network
and the applicant is therefore advised to contact Southern Water to obtain
any necessary consents before works associated with the disposal of foul
water is commenced.

_____________________________________________________________________

Officer to Contact
Mrs E Meppem, Telephone 01424 783288

Background Papers
Application No: HS/FA/19/00303 including all letters and documents

Page 49

This page is intentionally left blank

12

1

42

5

40
39

33.3m

21

23

31

32

gs

36

8

32
a
11

Cottage
45

27

15

9 7

6

26

TA
C

26
a

KL
EW
AY

29

e

3

1

23
a

21

e

23

53
52
54

Stro
n

12
10

Ch
ap
el

Pl
at

15

20

12
5
35

13

15

15

7

2

ce

14

e

50

13
4

12
8

12
6

4

ra

Av
en
u

53
b

56

13
.0m

12

18

Co
ttag

ce

es

1

16 1
7

dT
err
a

14

r's

1

r

1

13

Sta
r

Ox
fo r

27.9m

20

6

5

tH

ill

Li
ft

3

Date: Jun 2019
Application No. HS/FA/19/00325

Ea
s

7.7m

10 Strongs Passage
Hastings
TN34 3BY

Scale: 1:1,250

RO
AD

Zion

's
Pa
ss
ag
e

ill
Pa
ssa
g

10

96
61

92

60
60
a

64
to
66 6
3

PH
1

R

20

7

18

1
He
nr
yT
er

5 36 38

Ea
st
H

6
Tra
fa l
ga

10

EB 1
EN
EZ
E
14

1

2

in e
's
Pa
ss
2
ag

10
1
98 1
00

99

Club

PH

2

6

47

4

53
.5

97

reek

30

121
118

43
42a

EE
T

45

ST
R

10
8

S'
INT
SA

UL
C

AL
L

52
54
48
to

44
46

he C

32
to 42
38
to
87

Sw
a

2

85

LB

113

110

ass
age

PH

s

W
oo
d

30
a

8

Shelter

68
67

12 12
2
2a

1

117

70

eP

Works

El Sub Sta

P la
ce

80

NE
to
64 74

62
to 6
8

Bou
rn

ShelterT

e

BOU
R
TH E

69

9

rloo

Co t
ta g

76

71

75
77

Wa
te

Co
tta
ge

13
5

12
3

Hill

86

Eas
t

1

96 98
94

Car Park

92

rlo
o
Pa
ssa
ge

Bo
u

rne

Wa
te

n

13

W
a lk

14
13
12

102 10
4
100

11

±

PH

Ga
rd e

48

Agenda
Item
5b rights [2019]. OS [100021328]
© Crown Copyright
and database

12
a

0

10

20

30

40
Meters

Retrospective consent for replacement of metal staircase to rear
elevation

Assistant Director Housing & Built Environment
Hastings Borough Council,
Muriel Matters House, Breeds Place,
Hastings, East Sussex TN34 3UY
Tel: 01424 451090
email: planning@hastings.gov.uk
Use of this data is subject to terms and conditions. You are granted a non-exclusive,
royalty free, revocable licence solely to view the Licensed Data for non-commercial
purposes for the period during which Hastings Borough Council makes it available.
You are not permitted to copy, sub-license, distribute, sell or otherwise make available
the Licenced Data to third parties in any form. Third party rights to enforce the
terms of this licence shall be reserved to OS.

Page 51

This page is intentionally left blank

AGENDA ITEM NO: 5 (b)
Report to:

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting:

10 July 2019

Report from:

Assistant Director of Housing and Built Environment

Application Address:

10 Strongs Passage, Hastings, TN34 3BY

Proposal:
Application No:

Retrospective consent for replacement of metal
staircase to rear elevation
HS/FA/19/00325

Recommendation:

Grant Full Planning Permission

Ward:
Conservation Area:
Listed Building:

OLD HASTINGS 2018
Yes - Old Town
No

Applicant:

Mr Lucas per Meridian Surveyors 16 Havelock Road
Hastings East Sussex TN34 1BP

Public Consultation
Site Notice:
Press Advertisement:
Letters of Objection:
Petitions of Objection Received:
Letters of Support:
Petitions of Support Received:
Neutral comments received
Application Status:

Yes

Yes - Conservation Area
5
0
0
0
0
Not delegated - 5 or more letters of objection
received

1. Site and surrounding area
This application refers to a flat of a modern building which is of 1960s/1970s construction
located within the Old Town Conservation Area. This host dwelling can be accessed via
public footpath steps, Strongs Passage, from All Saints Street, or by public highway via East
Hill Passage off of Tackleway.
The property is located on a gradual slope towards the west, meaning the host dwelling is of
a higher altitude than No 8 and No 9, located to the rear of No 10. As such the internal
ground level of the host dwelling would be about the same level as the eaves of No 8 and No
9.

Page 53

The topography means that the public footpath, Strongs Passage, separated by a brick wall
and dense shrubbery, to the north of the rear elevation, is lower in altitude than the host
dwellings internal ground level, and gradually slopes away to the west down towards No 8
and No 9. To the west and south of the rear elevation are wooden fences and shrubbery,
separating the host dwelling from No 8 and No 9. However there is no front curtilage and so
the front door opens directly onto the public footpath of Strongs Passage.
The rear elevation of the host dwelling consist of a single upvc double glazed window and a
upvc double glazed full height window and door, allowing access to the garden by means a
metal staircase due to internal ground level being higher than external ground level.
Constraints
Low Pressure Pipeline SGN
Archaeological Notification Area

2. Proposed development
This application is seeking retrospective planning permission to replace a metal staircase to
the rear elevation with a metal galvanised staircase on a like for like appearance, however
the replacement staircase has a larger landing size.
The replacement metal staircase measures 2 metres along the rear elevation, to the point of
where the first step occurs and measures 0.9 metres in width extending from the rear
elevation and just over 2.2 metres from external ground level to the bottom of the staircase.
The staircase will otherwise be the same height as the previous staircase.
The application is supported by the following documents:
· Waste minimisation statement
· Design and access statement
· Heritage statement
· 3 x Photos
Relevant planning history
ENF/18/00534

New external staircase without planning permission

HS/FA/77/00234

Construction of access road to new development and formation of
5 hardstandings. Granted 24/08/1977

HS/LB/76/00231

Demolition of Nos. 39 & 43B All Saints Street; 1, 2, 3 & 4 Strongs
Passage; 2, 4 & 6 East Hill Passage; 1 & 2 Tassells Cottages and
20A Tackleway. Granted 14/04/1976

HS/OA/74/00793

Redevelopment by the erection of 12 houses, 11 flats, 13 garages
and 7 hardstandings. Granted 24/10/1974

HS/DS/74/00974

Redevelopment by the erection of 12 houses, 11 flats, 13 garages
and 7 hardstandings. Granted 18/12/1974

Page 54

HS/73/01408

Redevelopment by the erection of 11 houses, 1 basement flatlet,
12 flats and garages, with vehicular and pedestrian accesses.
Granted 11/12/1973

HS/OA/61/00890

Erection of residential flats. Refused 27/10/1961

National and local policies
Hastings Local Plan – Planning Strategy 2014
Policy FA5 - Strategic Policy for Eastern Area
Policy SC1 - Overall Strategy for Managing Change in a Sustainable Way
Policy EN1 - Built and Historic Environment
Hastings Local Plan – Development Management Plan 2015
Policy LP1 - Considering planning applications
Policy DM1 - Design Principles
Policy DM3 - General Amenity
Policy HN1 - Development Affecting the Significance and Setting of Designated Heritage
Assets (including Conservation Areas)
Policy HN4 - Development affecting Heritage Assets with Archaeological and Historic Interest
or Potential Interest
Other policies/guidance
None
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
Paragraph 11 sets out a general presumption in favour of sustainable development and
states that development proposals which accord with the development plan should be
approved without delay.
Paragraph 12 of the NPPF states that applications for planning permission must be
determined in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate
otherwise. Three dimensions of sustainability given in paragraph 8 are to be sought jointly:
economic (by ensuring that sufficient land of the right type is available in the right places and
at the right time to support growth and innovation); social (providing housing, creating high
quality environment with accessible local services); and environmental (contributing to,
protecting and enhancing natural, built and historic environment) whilst paragraph 9 advises
that plans and decisions need to take local circumstances into account, so they respond to
the different opportunities for achieving sustainable development in different areas.
Section 12 of the NPPF sets out the requirement for good design in development. Paragraph
124 states: "The creation of high quality buildings and places is fundamental to what the
planning and development process should achieve. Good design is a key aspect of
sustainable development, creates better places in which to live and work and helps make
development acceptable to communities."
Paragraph 127 of the NPPF requires that decisions should ensure developments:
· Function well;
· Add to the overall quality of the area for the lifetime of that development;

Page 55

·

·
·

·
·

Are visually attractive in terms of:
* Layout
* Architecture
* Landscaping
Are sympathetic to local character/history whilst not preventing change or innovation;
Maintain a strong sense of place having regard to:
* Building types
* Materials
* Arrangement of streets
Optimise the potential of the site to accommodate an appropriate number and mix of
development;
Create safe places with a high standard of amenity for future and existing users

Paragraph 130 states permission should be refused for development of poor design that fails
to take the opportunities available for improving the character and quality of an area and the
way that it functions.
Paragraph 130 also seeks to ensure that the quality of an approved development is not
materially diminished between permission and completion through changes to the permitted
scheme.
Paragraph 193 states: When considering the impact of a proposed development on the
significance of a designated heritage asset, great weight should be given to the asset’s
conservation (and the more important the asset, the greater the weight should be). This is
irrespective of whether any potential harm amounts to substantial harm, total loss
or less than substantial harm to its significance.
Paragraph 194 states: Any harm to, or loss of, the significance of a designated heritage
asset (from its alteration or destruction, or from development within its setting), should
require clear and convincing justification. Substantial harm to or loss of:
a) grade II listed buildings, or grade II registered parks or gardens, should be
exceptional;
b) assets of the highest significance, notably scheduled monuments, protected
wreck sites, registered battlefields, grade I and II* listed buildings, grade I and
II* registered parks and gardens, and World Heritage Sites, should be wholly
exceptional.
Paragraph 196 states: Where a development proposal will lead to less than substantial harm
to the significance of a designated heritage asset, this harm should be weighed against the
public benefits of the proposal including, where appropriate, securing its
optimum viable use.

3. Consultation comments
Conservation Officer – Officer states that the new staircase and increased platform size is
essential to allow easy access to the building. That from the public realm the stair case is
largely obscured, only the platform and associated railings are visible so therefore the
proposal satisfies policy HN1 of the development management plan in terms of siting, scale
and appearance. The officer states that the staircase has clear and convincing justification in

Page 56

the form of enabling access, its effect on the conservation area is less than substantial and
therefore the officer is satisfied it meets the criteria of Paragraph 194 of the NPPF. In order
to ensure harmony of colour across the public realm, the officer recommends a condition is
applied to ensure the staircase is painted black.

4. Representations
In respect of this application a site notice was displayed at the entrance to Strongs Passage
on All Saints Street, and an advert placed in the local paper.
6 no of representations received from 5 different properties objecting to the application and
raising the following concerns:
· Loss of privacy
· Poor design and appearance

5. Determining issues
The main issues to consider are the impact on character and appearance of the conservation
area and impact on neighbouring residential amenities.
a) Principle
The site is in a sustainable location and the application is therefore in accordance with policy
LP1 Hastings Local Plan - Development Management (2015) in this respect and acceptable
in principle subject to other local plan policies.
b) Impact on character and appearance of conservation area
Policy EN1 of the Hastings Local Plan - Planning Strategy (2014), states, importance will be
placed on new development making a positive contribution to the quality, character, local
distinctiveness and sense of place of historic buildings and areas. Particular care will be
given to protecting the significance and setting of the following heritage assets: (b)
Conservation areas. There is a presumption in favour of the conservation of heritage assets
and their settings. The more important the asset, the greater the weight that will be given to
the need to conserve it. As heritage assets are irreplaceable, any harm or loss will require
clear and convincing justification. Development which sustains and enhances the
significance of heritage assets and/or their setting will be encouraged. The Council will look
for opportunities to enhance or better reveal the significance of the designated heritage
assets, such as listed buildings and Conservation Areas, in the town. Investment in the
appropriate repair and restoration of heritage assets, where works will enhance their
significance, will be encouraged and supported by the Council.
Policy HN1 of the Hastings Local Plan - Development Management Plan (2015), states,
applications that have the potential to impact upon the significance of designated heritage
assets (including conservation areas) will be assessed against the following criteria, to
ensure that the proposed development sustains and enhances the significance of the
heritage asset: (a) The historic context, street patterns, plot layouts and boundary
treatments, green space and landscaping, site levels, block sizes, siting, scale, height,
massing, appearance, materials and finishes in relation to the heritage assets; (b) Good
performance against nationally recognised best practice guidance on development in relation
to heritage assets, including building in context, setting and views, architectural quality and

Page 57

local distinctiveness. Permission will be given for those schemes that show a full
understanding of the significance of the asset and convincingly demonstrate how their
chosen design sustains and enhances the significance of any heritage assets affected
(including conservation areas). The topography of Hastings means that the Council will give
consideration to the impact of development on the setting of heritage assets, including the
impact upon more distant views and from across the other sides of the valleys. The Council
encourages proposals that sustain or enhance the setting of heritage assets. This policy is
written for designated assets. However, non-designated heritage assets of archaeological
interest that are demonstrably of equivalent significance to scheduled monuments (given the
results of a Historic Environment Record informed study), will be treated as having at least
the same level of significance as other designated heritage assets.
Whilst the metal staircase will be partially visible from the public realm, taking into account
paragraph 193, 194 and 196 of the NPPF, the scale, subsequent sitting, and boundary
treatment, ensure that this will not have any adverse impact on, or, dominate the street
scene.
The proposed works are therefore considered acceptable in this respect and are in
agreement with policy EN1 of the Hastings Local Plan - Planning Strategy (2014) and policy
DM1 of the Hastings Local Plan - Development Management Plan (2015).
A condition will be applied that the staircase is to be painted black to ensure harmony of
colour across the public realm.
c) Impact on neighbouring residential amenities
Policy DM3 of the Hastings Local Plan - Development Management Plan (2015), states, in
order to achieve a good living standard for future users of proposed development and its
neighbours it should be demonstrated that amenity has been considered and appropriate
solutions have been incorporated into schemes. Permission will be given for development
where: (a) the use of the scale, form, height, mass, and density of any building or buildings,
reduces or avoids any adverse impact on the amenity (privacy, over shadowing, loss of
daylight) of neighbouring properties.
It is not considered the metal staircase will have any negative impact on the neighbouring
properties in terms of privacy, outlook and daylight. The landing portion of the staircase
measures just over 2.2 metres from ground level, extends 2 metres along the rear elevation,
and protrudes 0.9m from the rear elevation. Its purpose is to solely provide access to the
garden beneath and not for the siting of tables and chairs for sitting out (which would be
unlikely to be accommodated due to its restricted depth of just 0.9m). Any views from the
landing portion and associated steps can already be achieved from the existing arrangement
as access to this is by means of a glass fronted door set alongside a full height glazed
window.
The proposed works are therefore considered acceptable in this respect and are in
agreement with policy DM3 of the Hastings Local Plan - Development Management Plan
(2015).

Page 58

d) Archaeological
Policy HN4 of the Hastings Local Plan - Development Management Plan (2015), states, for
all applications affecting heritage assets with archaeological or historic interest or potential
interest, the Council will require developers to submit an appropriate, Historic Environment
Record (HER) informed, desk-based assessment and, where necessary, the results of a field
evaluation. Applicants will be expected to demonstrate that the particular archaeological
interest of the site will be satisfactorily preserved either in situ or by record.
The works carried out were to replace an existing balcony and therefore no further intrusive
excavation work was required. The proposed works are therefore considered acceptable in
this respect and are in agreement with policy HN4 of the Hastings Local Plan - Development
Management Plan (2015).

6. Conclusion
The proposed replacement metal staircase to the rear elevation is considered appropriate for
this location and in keeping with the existing building. These proposals would not cause
harm to the character or appearance of the conservation area, and would not harm
residential amenities.
These proposals comply with the Development Plan in accordance with Section 38 (6) of the
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 which states:
"If regard is to be had to the development plan for the purpose of any determination to be
made under the Planning Acts the determination must be made in accordance with the plan
unless material considerations indicate otherwise”.
The Human Rights considerations have been taken into account fully in balancing the
planning issues.

7. Recommendation

Grant Full Planning Permission subject to the following conditions:
1.

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with
the following approved plans:
nr1520/19/02, nr1520/19/01

2.

Within 3 months of the date of this approval, the railings surrounding the
metal staircase hereby approved, shall be painted black to match the hand
rail which is located in Strongs Passage, directly adjacent to the staircase
and platform.

Page 59

Reasons:
1.

For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

2.

In the interests of the visual amenity.

Notes to the Applicant
1.

Failure to comply with any condition imposed on this permission may result
in enforcement action without further warning.

2.

Statement of positive engagement: In dealing with this application Hastings
Borough Council has actively sought to work with the applicant in a positive
and proactive manner, in accordance with paragraph 38 of the National
Planning Policy Framework.

_____________________________________________________________________

Officer to Contact
Mr G Fownes, Telephone 01424 783250

Background Papers
Application No: HS/FA/19/00325 including all letters and documents

Page 60

d
An

37

Play Area

erid

7

W
H

The Cottage

IT
E

RO

20

CK

6

IT
WH

Clambers Play Centre

ER

OC

E
A RD
KG

NS

IT
WH

ER

S ta

SM

4

SM
11

Hotel
1 to

White Rock Theatre

10

16

IT
WH

E

C
RO

K

Shelter
rP
Ca

Shelter

N

1 to
rt
Cou
an
orm

r
ou

t

2

PH
37

Shelter
The

21
15

r
Ca

C
ge
ri a

ade
5
A rc
ue
4 3
n
3
e
Av
33
32
lace
LB Pa

1
to 3
27

26

E
AC
PL
SM

True Crime

1

AD
RO

1

SM

3

Cliff

SM

Subway

ub
El S

A

'S
EL

5

23.7m

K
OC

CH
MI
T
S

1

Darcy Hall

RO
AD

n
sto
Pre
a

Agenda
Item
5c rights [2019]. OS [100021328]
© Crown Copyright
and database

Bowls Club

9

±

Hastings

Source Park

8.4m
The Hub

m
Pro

de
ena

Shingle

ark

South African

War Memorial

Mean

High

Wate

r

Groynes

TCB
Shingle

Shingle

Shingle
Groyne

0

Hastings Pier

White Rock Fountain (Seafront)
Hastings
TN34 1JL

Date: Jun 2019
Scale: 1:1,250

Application No. HS/CD/19/00470

M

Low
ean

10

te
Wa

20

r

30

40
Meters

Discharge of condition 3 (Sample Materials) of Planning Permission
HS/FA/18/00453 - Renovation and alteration of the existing
fountain and installation of bench seating, paved area, planting
area and water misters play area.

Assistant Director Housing & Built Environment
Hastings Borough Council,
Muriel Matters House, Breeds Place,
Hastings, East Sussex TN34 3UY
Tel: 01424 451090
email: planning@hastings.gov.uk
Use of this data is subject to terms and conditions. You are granted a non-exclusive,
royalty free, revocable licence solely to view the Licensed Data for non-commercial
purposes for the period during which Hastings Borough Council makes it available.
You are not permitted to copy, sub-license, distribute, sell or otherwise make available
the Licenced Data to third parties in any form. Third party rights to enforce the
terms of this licence shall be reserved to OS.

Page 61

This page is intentionally left blank

AGENDA ITEM NO: 5 (c)
Report to:

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting:

10 July 2019

Report from:

Assistant Director of Housing and Built Environment

Application Address:

Application No:

White Rock Fountain (Seafront), Hastings,
TN34 1JL
Discharge of condition 3 (Sample Materials) of
Planning Permission HS/FA/18/00453 Renovation and alteration of the existing
fountain and installation of bench seating,
paved area, planting area and water misters
play area.
HS/CD/19/00470

Recommendation:

Approve

Ward:
Conservation Area:
Listed Building:

CASTLE 2018
Yes - White Rock
No

Applicant:

Hastings Borough Council on behalf of the
Foreshore Trust per Saville Jones Consultants Ltd
74 Victoria Road Worthing West Sussex BN11
1UN

Proposal:

Public Consultation
Site Notice:
Press Advertisement:
Letters of Objection:
Petitions of Objection Received:
Letters of Support:
Petitions of Support Received:
Neutral comments received
Application Status:

No
No
0
0
0
0
0
Not delegated Council application on Council owned land

1. Site and surrounding area
The White Rock fountain is located directly on the main promenade on Hastings Seafront,
just west of Hastings Pier. The fountain is a short distance from the town centre, and forms
the roof of the Source Park, a skate park Page
located 63
in the former White Rock Baths below the

promenade. Its location on the seafront between the town centre and Hastings Pier means
that it forms a key feature of the public realm, easily visible and accessible by pedestrians
along the seafront.
The White Rock Fountain was created in 1987 after several roof forms covered the main
swimming pool of the former White Rock Baths. The fountain was in use for several years
but was decommissioned due to excessive water use and running costs.
Relevant site constraints
·
·
·

Hastings Historic Core Archaeological Notification Area (ANA)
Flood zones 2 and 3
Sited close to several listed buildings - namely Hastings Pier, seafront shelter opposite
White Rock Pavilion, the Boar War memorial adjacent to the pier, 16-24 White Rock and
Palace Court, White Rock.

The application site is also located within the White Rock Conservation Area, and the White
Rock and America Ground Cultural Quarter, as identified in the Hastings Development
Management Plan 2015.

2. Proposed development
The application proposes to discharge condition 3 (materials) of planning permission
HS/FA/18/00453 (Renovation and alteration of the existing fountain and installation of bench
seating, paved area, planting area and water misters play area).
Condition 3 states:
"No development shall commence until the following samples of materials have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority
·
·
·
·

Timber for the seating
Paving stones
Tactile paving
Stone for the white rock feature

Development shall be carried out in accordance with the details approved and no occupation
of any building approved shall occur until those works have been completed"
The application is supported by the following samples:
·
·
·
·

Paving stone: Tobermore Braemar Ground Texture Cara Slate;
Reconstituted stone for the White Rock Feature: Broadmead Portland Acid Etched;
Concrete bench: Factory Furniture Soca Seat, Light Exposed Aggregate;
Timber top of the concrete benches: Factory Furniture Cumuru;

No sample for tactile paving has been submitted. This is not being used in the development,
rather the paving stones as submitted are to be used for the hard landscaping. This is
accepted, and is not contrary to the approved plans.

Page 64

Relevant planning history
HS/FA/18/00453 Renovation and alteration of the existing fountain and installation of
bench seating, paved area, planting area and water misters play area
Granted 8 November 2018
HS/FA/12/00132 Change of use and alterations to promenade level building and part of
lower level to cycle hire shop, café and ancillary use (Source Park).
Approved April 2012
HS/13/00432
Change of use from D2 to D1 (Seafront Community Showroom).
Approved August 2013
National and Local Policies
Hastings Local Plan – Planning Strategy 2014
FA2 - Strategic Policy for Central Area
FA6 - Strategic Policy for The Seafront
SC1 - Overall Strategy for Managing Change in a Sustainable Way
EN1 - Built and Historic Environment
Hastings Local Plan – Development Management Plan 2015
LP1 - Considering Planning Applications
DM1 - Design Principles
HN1 - Development Affecting the Significance and Setting of Designated Heritage Assets
(including Conservation Areas)
HN4 - Development Affecting Heritage Assets with Archaeological and Historic Interest or
Potential Interest
CQ1 - Cultural Quarters
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
Paragraph 11 sets out a general presumption in favour of sustainable development and
states that development proposals which accord with the Development Plan should be
approved without delay.
Paragraph 12 of the NPPF states that applications for planning permission must be
determined in accordance with the Development Plan unless material considerations indicate
otherwise. Three dimensions of sustainability given in paragraph 8 are to be sought jointly:
economic (by ensuring that sufficient land of the right type is available in the right places and
at the right time to support growth and innovation); social (providing housing, creating high
quality environment with accessible local services); and environmental (contributing to,
protecting and enhancing natural, built and historic environment) whilst paragraph 9 advises
that plans and decisions need to take local circumstances into account, so they respond to
the different opportunities for achieving sustainable development in different areas.
Section 12 of the NPPF sets out the requirement for good design in development. Paragraph
124 states: "The creation of high quality buildings and places is fundamental to what the
planning and development process should achieve. Good design is a key aspect of
sustainable development, creates better places in which to live and work and helps make
development acceptable to communities."

Page 65

Paragraph 127 of the NPPF requires that decisions should ensure developments:
· Function well;
· Add to the overall quality of the area for the lifetime of that development;
· Are visually attractive in terms of:
* Layout
* Architecture
* Landscaping
· Are sympathetic to local character/history whilst not preventing change or innovation;
· Maintain a strong sense of place having regard to:
* Building types
* Materials
* Arrangement of streets
· Optimise the potential of the site to accommodate an appropriate number and mix of
development;
· Create safe places with a high standard of amenity for future and existing users
Paragraph 130 states permission should be refused for development of poor design that fails
to take the opportunities available for improving the character and quality of an area and the
way that it functions.
Paragraph 130 also seeks to ensure that the quality of an approved development is not
materially diminished between permission and completion through changes to the permitted
scheme.

3. Consultation comments
Hastings Borough Council (Conservation Officer) - no objection
The Conservation Officer is satisfied that the proposed materials are appropriate for the
development, and will not cause harm to the significance of the conservation area or setting
of nearby listed buildings.

4. Representations
Comments are not invited on discharge of condition applications.

5. Determining issues
The main issue to be considered in the determination of this application is whether the
materials used for the development will sustain and enhance the character and appearance
of the White Rock conservation area.
a) Principle
The site is in a sustainable location and the application is therefore in accordance with Policy
LP1 Hastings Local Plan - Development Management (2015) in this respect and acceptable
in principle subject to other local plan policies.
b) Impact on character and appearance of the area, and the White Rock Conservation Area
The original application sought to re-model the existing fountain structure and re-purpose it
as a modern seaside attraction. Whilst the fountain and seating area will remain low lying

Page 66

and will not obstruct views along the open seafront, the use of materials still need to be
carefully considered to minimise negative impact on the setting of the conservation area and
nearby listed buildings.
The applicant has submitted the following materials for use within the scheme, in accordance
with the requirements of condition 3 of planning permission HS/FA/18/00453:
·
·
·
·

Paving stone: Tobermore Braemar Ground Texture Cara Slate for the paving stones;
Broadmead Portland Acid Etched reconstituted stone for the White Rock Feature: ;
Factory Furniture Soca Seat, Light Exposed Aggregate for the concrete bench
Cumuru timber top for the concrete benches.

An analysis of the submitted materials is set out below:
Design
element
Slatted timber
to be used for
the seating
Paving

Proposed
materials
Factory Furniture
Cumuru

Comments

Tobermore
Braemar Ground
Texture Cara Slate

Good quality man-made paving with some natural
stone content. Dark colour should complement the
pale Portland type finish to the feature sculpture. Dark
colour should also mask wear and tear, as stains from
gum and grease (ice cream, milkshake, chips etc.)
should be less obvious than on a lighter coloured
surface. Acceptable.

Tactile paving

N/a

Architect has confirmed that no tactile paving is being
proposed for the scheme. Acceptable.

Stone for
White Rock
feature

Broadmead
Portland Acid
Etched
Reconstituted
Stone

This is a very good quality reconstituted stone. The
stone sample is a close match to the appearance and
texture of a natural Portland stone. Once the stone
has weathered in it would be very hard to see that this
was not a natural stone.

Other sample
submitted for
base of new
concrete
benches (not
specifically
required under
Condition 3)

Factory Furniture
Light Exposed
Aggregate

In comparing the proposed sample for the concrete
base of the new benches with the colour of the
concrete on the existing fountain structures, it is clear
that there is a colour difference. The existing concrete
is a more buff colour with a shingle content, whereas
the proposed concrete sample has a grey colour with a
black aggregate. From the approved designs, it looks
like the new and existing concrete will be seen
immediately adjacent to each other, so a more buff
colour for the new concrete benches would match in
better with the existing fabric.
Not required under condition.

Good quality hardwood being proposed. Acceptable.

As set out in the table above, the submitted materials are considered appropriate for this
development. They are of good quality, and will not be out of keeping with other materials
used in the surrounding area. Their use will not cause harm to the character and appearance
of the area, or affect the setting of the conservation area or nearby listed buildings. Condition
3 of planning permission HS/FA/18/00453 is therefore discharged.

Page 67

The applicant is advised that when considering the materials for the base of the concrete
benches, that a buff colour would be more sympathetic to the existing fabric. This is not
however, required to be discharged under this condition.
c) Environmental Impact Assessment
The National Planning Practice Guidance (Paragraph: 017 Reference ID: 4-017-20170728)
states that "Projects which are described in the first column of Schedule 2 but which do not
exceed the relevant thresholds, or meet the criteria in the second column of the Schedule, or
are not at least partly in a sensitive area, are not Schedule 2 development."
This development is not within a sensitive area as defined by Regulation 2 (1) of the Town
and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017 and does not
exceed the thresholds of schedule 2 of the Town and Country Planning (Environmental
Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017.

6. Conclusion
The submitted samples are of sufficient quality and appearance to enable condition 3 of
planning permission HS/FA/18/00453 to be fully discharged. The proposal therefore
complies with the Development Plan in accordance with Section 38 (6) of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 which states:
"If regard is to be had to the Development Plan for the purpose of any determination to be
made under the Planning Acts the determination must be made in accordance with the plan
unless material considerations indicate otherwise”.
The Human Rights considerations have been taken into account fully in balancing the
planning issues.

7. Recommendation
Condition 3 of planning permission HS/FA/18/00453 is discharged.
Approve

_____________________________________________________________________

Officer to Contact
Mrs S Wood, Telephone 01424 783329

Background Papers
Application No: HS/CD/19/00470 including all letters and documents

Page 68

Agenda
Item
5d rights [2019]. OS [100021328]
© Crown Copyright
and database

12

29

90
32

86

87

7

33

34

8

88
11
32 .7m
31

r
oft
Te
r
Cr
n
rto

Date: Jun 2019
Application No. HS/FA/19/00097

TR

HS

68

8

11 13

ES

TR E

17

PH
25

ET

14

28
30

TH O
US

1 to 3

Courthouse Place

16

1 to 3
Bourne Hall

51

31

5

WIN
D

4

(remains of)
10 to 12

ING

ffice

Bou
r

sob
el
Cen
tre Blackm

S TR

16 to 18

EET

PH

ne
C

our
t

12
8 to

7

55

4a

The
I

Post
O

31

an

16

Posts

EAS
T

4 to 6
Pleasant Row

EAST BEACH STREET
Winkle
Winkle Island

PH
3

Posts

PH

REET
EAST ST
1

20
22

27
1 to

ice

11

Off

3
Pa
House
ssa
ge
Waterloo

1 to 3

Car Park

24 25

9

Works

76

42

Garden

5

6

Maritime

49

Town Wall

b

8

HIG

56

58 58

ab

Club

74

6

22 23

39
77
77 a
7
10
.2m 8
41
40
a4
0 3
9a

73

4

47
46

21

10

7

TOWN

20
Works
We
lle
sle
y

Club

CO
UR

EE
T

PH
21a

53

65

64
d

1

9.5m

64 64
b
64

62
a

62

61

4

Po
st

61

3

1

Discovery Playground, Old Town Hall
High Street
Hastings
TN34 3EW

Scale: 1:1,250

The Old Brewery

Co
u rt

1

70

PH

c

1

61c

13

6

e

70
5

34
a

OLD

52 51a
52a

Memorial

1 to 6

73

Butlers Gap

9
PH

TCB

El

Gardens

9

2

ssage

68

AC
E

54

1

4

5

3

17
16.
8m

a
Oak P

RR

4

Swan Inn

12
12
a

13

15

14

Norton Villa

65

TE

66

24

SW
AN

West
Hill
Cottage Ostler
4
Sw
an
Ave
nu

10

1

2

Sq

1

Old Town

6

20
21

8

1

Si
nn
oc
k

9

16.8m

19

8?

5

5

8

1

1

17

West Hill

t's

St Clement's
Church

ce

House

3

2

6

19
17
.

11 9

Pla

6 4
2
5 3
1
West Hill Pavilion

ch
St
C
Ho
us lem
en
e

Church 2

3m 15

Cobourg
1

Villa

Ch
ur

4

u rg
bo
Co

Flats

Pa
ss
ag
e

4

ch

5

Harpsichord

House

tin
g

69

11

10

27

8

5

Ch
ur

Pr
in

48

8

33

2

ac
e

Fern

4

se

2

18

6

Pl

16 14
a

35

Clo

21

ish

4

3

35

av
en
d

El Sub Sta
PH

82

es C

1

Eg
e

tag

22

o4

ot

47
43

7

rC

Cott

1t

51

14

6
Gl 5
ou
ce
ste

Lighthouse
(Fixed,Red)

12

55

Ho
El
u
Su se Unic
or
b
n
St
a

2

±

56.3m

0

10

20

30

Memorial

40
Shelter
Meters

Installation of a new ' multi split system' comprising of 2 no internal wall
mounted air conditioning units to ground and first floors, 4 no external
condensers to the roof and associated pipe work and pumps (amended
description)

Assistant Director Housing & Built Environment
Hastings Borough Council,
Muriel Matters House, Breeds Place,
Hastings, East Sussex TN34 3UY
Tel: 01424 451090
email: planning@hastings.gov.uk
Use of this data is subject to terms and conditions. You are granted a non-exclusive,
royalty free, revocable licence solely to view the Licensed Data for non-commercial
purposes for the period during which Hastings Borough Council makes it available.
You are not permitted to copy, sub-license, distribute, sell or otherwise make available
the Licenced Data to third parties in any form. Third party rights to enforce the
terms of this licence shall be reserved to OS.

Page 69

This page is intentionally left blank

AGENDA ITEM NO: 5 (d)
Report to:

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting:

10 July 2019

Report from:

Assistant Director of Housing and Built Environment

Application Address:

Application No:

Discovery Playground, Old Town Hall, High
Street, Hastings, TN34 3EW
Installation of a new ' multi split system'
comprising of 2 no internal wall mounted air
conditioning units to ground and first floors, 4
no external condensers to the roof and
associated pipe work and pumps (amended
description)
HS/FA/19/00097

Recommendation:

Grant Full Planning Permission

Ward:
Conservation Area:
Listed Building:

OLD HASTINGS 2018
Yes - Old Town
No

Applicant:

Hastings Borough Council per Baker Architectural
Ltd 29 Stirling Road Castleham Business Centre
East St. Leonards-on-Sea, East Sussex. TN38
9NP

Proposal:

Public Consultation
Site Notice:
Press Advertisement:
Letters of Objection:
Petitions of Objection Received:
Letters of Support:
Petitions of Support Received:
Neutral comments received
Application Status:

Yes

Yes - Affects a Listed Building Amended Plans
0
0
0
0
0
Not delegated Council application on Council owned land

1. Site and surrounding area
The site is a prominent two storey building which was built in 1823 and abuts the High Street.
The building is Grade II listed, first listed on the 19th January 1951. The building was
formerly the Town Hall and was used as a
museum
Page
71for many years, from 1949 until 2014.

Most recently, the building has been used as an indoor children's playground - the Discovery
Playground, although this use has recently ceased and the building is vacant.
The building is within the Old Town Conservation Area. The front of the building features a
ground floor arcade of five large round arches with windows and the main door with five tall
traditional sliding sash windows to the first floor. To the top and middle of the building there is
a rectangular panel with the coat of arms of the town and the date.
The surrounding area is predominantly made up of buildings with retail use at ground floor
and residential to the floors above. The building is located within an Archaeological
Notification Area, the Old Town District Shopping Centre and is also listed as an Asset of
Community Value. To the rear of the building is St Clements Church which is Grade II* listed
and stands at a higher elevation than the site.
Listing
Former Town Hall. Dated 1823. Stuccoed. 2 storeys. Ground floor arcade of 5 round arches
with keyblocks and impost, glazed. Above wide band at 1st floor level. 1st floor 5 tall sashes
with glazing bars and cills, above band end parapet ramped up at ends and rising at centre
to hold rectangular panel with coat of arms of town and date. Slate hipped roof, at one end
square wooden bell turret, domed, with ball finial.
Constraints
Grade II Listed Building
Conservation Area - Old Town
SSSI Impact Risk Zone
Hastings Borough Council Owned Land
Archaeological Notification Area
Asset of Community Value Listed

2. Proposed development
It is proposed to install 2 x PACi wall mounted systems internally to the ground and first
floors (resulting in 4 in total), together with 4 x PACi elite inverter single phase external
condensers behind the parapet wall on the roof. Combined, these units provide a 'Multi Split
System’ to improve the energy rating of the property and control the internal environment in
terms of heating and cooling. Associated works will include the relevant pipe works and
pumps, which will exit the roof through existing vent locations.
The external condensers measure 619mm x 799mm x 299mm, with the internal wall
mounted systems measuring 300mm x 1065mm x 230mm. These external condensers will
fit in behind the existing parapet wall, and therefore, will not be visible from the streetscene.
The internal wall mounted systems will be sited at a high level to minimise the amount of
required pipe work, which will be sited in existing cupboards where possible.
The application is supported by the following documents:
·
·
·

Design Heritage Justification Statement (Issue 002)
Specification sheets
Annotated photos of location of roof vent tiles, position of internal units, cupboards
locating the proposed pipe work.

Page 72

Relevant planning history
HS/LB/18/00928 Installation of new multi-split system' comprising 2 no internal wall
mounted air conditioning units to ground & first floors and 4 no external
condensers to the roof, and associated pope work and pumps
Awaiting determination
HS/LB/18/00583 Replacement of lead guttering and parapet coping with new zinc gutters
and parapet copings
Granted 06/02/2018
HS/LB/17/00845 Install CCTV camera on rear external wall, facing the churchyard,and 2
motion activated solar lights.
Granted 11/01/2018
HS/FA/16/00651 Change of use from D1 (museum) to D2 (indoor children's playground).
Proposed mainly free standing fixtures, and redecoration throughout,
including glazed balustrade. Toilet on first floor to be re fitted. Repaint
external door using heritage colour. Windows will have stick on window
frosting with business logo. (application HS/LB/16/00711 also applies).
Granted 23/12/16
HS/LB/16/00711 Change of use from D1 (museum) to D2 (indoor children's playground).
Proposed mainly free standing fixtures, and redecoration throughout,
including glazed balustrade. Toilet on first floor to be re fitted. Repaint
external door using heritage colour. Windows will have stick on window
frosting with business logo (application HS/FA/16/00651 also applies).
Granted 23/12/16
National and local policies
Hastings Local Plan – Planning Strategy 2014
Policy FA5 - Strategic Policy for Eastern Area
Policy SC1 - Overall Strategy for Managing Change in a Sustainable Way
Policy EN1 - Built and Historic Environment
Hastings Local Plan – Development Management Plan 2015
Policy LP1 - Considering planning applications
Policy DM1 - Design Principles
Policy DM3 - General Amenity
Policy DM6 - Pollution and Hazards
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
Paragraph 11 sets out a general presumption in favour of sustainable development and
states that development proposals which accord with the development plan should be
approved without delay.
Paragraph 12 of the NPPF states that applications for planning permission must be
determined in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate
otherwise. Three dimensions of sustainability given in paragraph 8 are to be sought jointly:
economic (by ensuring that sufficient land of the right type is available in the right places and
at the right time to support growth and innovation); social (providing housing, creating high
quality environment with accessible local services); and environmental (contributing to,
protecting and enhancing natural, built and historic environment) whilst paragraph 9 advises

Page 73

that plans and decisions need to take local circumstances into account, so they respond to
the different opportunities for achieving sustainable development in different areas.
Section 12 of the NPPF sets out the requirement for good design in development. Paragraph
124 states: "The creation of high quality buildings and places is fundamental to what the
planning and development process should achieve. Good design is a key aspect of
sustainable development, creates better places in which to live and work and helps make
development acceptable to communities."
Paragraph 127 of the NPPF requires that decisions should ensure developments:
· Function well;
· Add to the overall quality of the area for the lifetime of that development;
· Are visually attractive in terms of:
* Layout
* Architecture
* Landscaping
· Are sympathetic to local character/history whilst not preventing change or innovation;
· Maintain a strong sense of place having regard to:
* Building types
* Materials
* Arrangement of streets
· Optimise the potential of the site to accommodate an appropriate number and mix of
development;
· Create safe places with a high standard of amenity for future and existing users
Paragraph 130 states permission should be refused for development of poor design that fails
to take the opportunities available for improving the character and quality of an area and the
way that it functions.
Paragraph 130 also seeks to ensure that the quality of an approved development is not
materially diminished between permission and completion through changes to the permitted
scheme.

3. Consultation comments
Hastings Borough Council (Conservation) - No objection
Following the receipt of additional detail, the conservation officer does not consider the works
to cause harm to the significance or setting of this heritage asset, and there will be no loss to
the building's fabric.
Hastings Borough Council (Environmental Health - no objection
No objection raised

4. Representations
No letters of representation were received following the display of a site notice at the site.

5. Determining issues
The main issues to consider with regard to this application are the impact of the external
condenser units on the character and appearance of the conservation area, as well as any

Page 74

impacts on the significance of the listed building. In addition, it is also important to consider
the audible impact of the condenser units, and whether there will be any impact on
neighbouring residential amenity.
a) Principle
The site is in a sustainable location and the application is therefore in accordance with policy
LP1 Hastings Local Plan - Development Management (2015) in this respect and acceptable
in principle subject to other local plan policies.
b) Impact on character and appearance of the conservation area

The Old Town Hall is a Grade II listed building. The property is Georgian, dating to 1823.
This is a key building along High Street, making an important contribution to views in this part
of the Old Town Conservation Area. The building is also visible from the north side, along
Church Passage, and from St. Clements churchyard.
The proposed air heating and cooling system will involve changes to the interior of the listed
building, although these are not relevant in the consideration of this application. The
remainder of the system, is to be fitted externally, and will involve 4 condenser units to be
sited on the rear roof of the listed building, tucked in behind an area of raised parapet.
The rear roof of the building is visible from both Church Passage, to the north of the Old
Town Hall, and from the eastern most area of St. Clements churchyard. Despite this, it is not
considered that the new external equipment will be a prominent feature, as the condenser
units will mostly be hidden behind the central raised parapet on the rear roof. Also, there will
be new pipe work within the roof void connecting the internal air conditioning units to the
external condenser units. The pipe work will exit the roof through existing roof vent locations,
with no loss of fabric. Overall therefore, it is considered that the external works are
acceptable and will not have any adverse impact on the character or appearance of the
surrounding Old Town Conservation Area. The development therefore complies with the
requirements of the NPPF, in respect of the need to conserve heritage assets, together with
the requirements of adopted Local Plan policies EN1 and HN1.
c) Impact on neighbouring residential amenities
Whilst the location of the premises is in a predominantly commercial location, there are also
residential premises nearby. Therefore, it is important to assess the noise levels arising from
the proposed condensers. The applicant has confirmed that the sound pressure is low at
1m, and the noise emitting will be similar to a conversation at home. Given the site's location
adjacent to a public house and in close proximity adjacent to other commercial units (as well
as residential), it is not considered that the proposed units will cause harm to amenity, in the
context of its surroundings. Environmental Health have no objection to the proposal, and
following the submission of a detailed specification, do not recommend a full noise report be
submitted.
The application is therefore considered to be acceptable in terms of noise, and in
accordance with the requirements of Policy DM6 of the Development Management Plan
2015.

Page 75

d) Environmental Impact Assessment
The National Planning Practice guidance (Paragraph: 017 Reference ID: 4-017-20170728)
states that "Projects which are described in the first column of Schedule 2 but which do not
exceed the relevant thresholds, or meet the criteria in the second column of the Schedule, or
are not at least partly in a sensitive area, are not Schedule 2 development."
This development is not within a sensitive area as defined by Regulation 2 (1) of the Town
and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017 and does not
exceed the thresholds of schedule 2 of the Town and Country Planning (Environmental
Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017.
e) Site constraints
The proposed works will take place internally, and on top of the existing building. Therefore,
there will be no impact in terms of the identified site constraints.

6. Conclusion
The proposed multi-split system is not considered to cause harm to the character and
appearance of the conservation area, or affect the significance of the relevant heritage
assets. Noise levels will be kept to a minimum, in accordance with adopted Local Plan policy.
The proposal therefore complies with the Development Plan in accordance with Section 38
(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 which states:
"If regard is to be had to the development plan for the purpose of any determination to be
made under the Planning Acts the determination must be made in accordance with the plan
unless material considerations indicate otherwise”.
The Human Rights considerations have been taken into account fully in balancing the
planning issues.

7. Recommendation
Grant Full Planning Permission subject to the following conditions:
1.

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of
three years from the date of this permission.

2.

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with
the following approved plans:
BA1857-01, 02, 03B, 04A, 05A, 06, 07A, 08
Specification sheet S-5OPK1E5A, U-5OPE2E5A

3.

The new external condensers shall be fixed onto the render parapet gutter
walls and shall not be fixed in place by taking a fixing through the metal
sheet lining of the parapet gutters below. This is to prevent damage to the
gutter linings and resulting water damage to the fabric of the building

Page 76

4.

No visible wiring or ducting shall be installed across the elevations or roof
slopes in connection with this development.

5.

With the exception of internal works the building works required to carry out
the development allowed by this permission must only be carried out within
the following times:08.00 - 18.00 Monday to Friday
08.00 - 13.00 on Saturdays
No working on Sundays or Public Holidays.

Reasons:
1.

This condition is imposed in accordance with the provisions of Section 91 of
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2.

For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

3.

To ensure the architectural and historic character of this Grade Listed
Building is adequately protected.

4.

To ensure the architectural and historic character of this Grade Listed
Building is adequately protected.

5.

To safeguard the amenity of nearby residents

Notes to the Applicant
1.

Failure to comply with any condition imposed on this permission may result
in enforcement action without further warning.

2.

Statement of positive engagement: In dealing with this application Hastings
Borough Council has actively sought to work with the applicant in a positive
and proactive manner, in accordance with paragraph 38 of the National
Planning Policy Framework.

_____________________________________________________________________

Officer to Contact
Mrs S Wood, Telephone 01424 783329

Background Papers
Application No: HS/FA/19/00097 including all letters and documents

Page 77

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda
Item
5e rights [2019]. OS [100021328]
© Crown Copyright
and database

12

29

90
32

86

87

7

33

34

8

88
11
32 .7m
31

r
oft
Te
r
Cr
n
rto

Date: Jun 2019
Application No. HS/LB/18/00928

TR

HS

68

8

11 13

ES

TR E

17

PH
25

ET

14

28
30

TH O
US

1 to 3

Courthouse Place

16

1 to 3
Bourne Hall

51

31

5

WIN
D

4

(remains of)
10 to 12

ING

ffice

Bou
r

sob
el
Cen
tre Blackm

S TR

16 to 18

EET

PH

ne
C

our
t

12
8 to

7

55

4a

The
I

Post
O

31

an

16

Posts

EAS
T

4 to 6
Pleasant Row

EAST BEACH STREET
Winkle
Winkle Island

PH
3

Posts

PH

REET
EAST ST
1

20
22

27
1 to

ice

11

Off

3
Pa
House
ssa
ge
Waterloo

1 to 3

Car Park

24 25

9

Works

76

42

Garden

5

6

Maritime

49

Town Wall

b

8

HIG

56

58 58

ab

Club

74

6

22 23

39
77
77 a
7
10
.2m 8
41
40
a4
0 3
9a

73

4

47
46

21

10

7

TOWN

20
Works
We
lle
sle
y

Club

CO
UR

EE
T

PH
21a

53

65

64
d

1

9.5m

64 64
b
64

62
a

62

61

4

Po
st

61

3

1

Discovery Playground, Old Town Hall
High Street
Hastings
TN34 3EW

Scale: 1:1,250

The Old Brewery

Co
u rt

1

70

PH

c

1

61c

13

6

e

70
5

34
a

OLD

52 51a
52a

Memorial

1 to 6

73

Butlers Gap

9
PH

TCB

El

Gardens

9

2

ssage

68

AC
E

54

1

4

5

3

17
16.
8m

a
Oak P

RR

4

Swan Inn

12
12
a

13

15

14

Norton Villa

65

TE

66

24

SW
AN

West
Hill
Cottage Ostler
4
Sw
an
Ave
nu

10

1

2

Sq

1

Old Town

6

20
21

8

1

Si
nn
oc
k

9

16.8m

19

8?

5

5

8

1

1

17

West Hill

t's

St Clement's
Church

ce

House

3

2

6

19
17
.

11 9

Pla

6 4
2
5 3
1
West Hill Pavilion

ch
St
C
Ho
us lem
en
e

Church 2

3m 15

Cobourg
1

Villa

Ch
ur

4

u rg
bo
Co

Flats

Pa
ss
ag
e

4

ch

5

Harpsichord

House

tin
g

69

11

10

27

8

5

Ch
ur

Pr
in

48

8

33

2

ac
e

Fern

4

se

2

18

6

Pl

16 14
a

35

Clo

21

ish

4

3

35

av
en
d

El Sub Sta
PH

82

es C

1

Eg
e

tag

22

o4

ot

47
43

7

rC

Cott

1t

51

14

6
Gl 5
ou
ce
ste

Lighthouse
(Fixed,Red)

12

55

Ho
El
u
Su se Unic
or
b
n
St
a

2

±

56.3m

0

10

20

30

Memorial

40
Shelter
Meters

Installation of a new ' multi split system' comprising of 2 no internal wall
mounted air conditioning units to ground and first floors, 4 no external
condensers to the roof and associated pipe work and pumps (amended
description)

Assistant Director Housing & Built Environment
Hastings Borough Council,
Muriel Matters House, Breeds Place,
Hastings, East Sussex TN34 3UY
Tel: 01424 451090
email: planning@hastings.gov.uk
Use of this data is subject to terms and conditions. You are granted a non-exclusive,
royalty free, revocable licence solely to view the Licensed Data for non-commercial
purposes for the period during which Hastings Borough Council makes it available.
You are not permitted to copy, sub-license, distribute, sell or otherwise make available
the Licenced Data to third parties in any form. Third party rights to enforce the
terms of this licence shall be reserved to OS.

Page 79

This page is intentionally left blank

AGENDA ITEM NO: 5 (e)
Report to:

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting:

10 July 2019

Report from:

Assistant Director of Housing and Built Environment

Application Address:

Application No:

Discovery Playground, Old Town Hall, High
Street, Hastings, TN34 3EW
Installation of a new ' multi split system'
comprising of 2 no internal wall mounted air
conditioning units to ground and first floors, 4
no external condensers to the roof and
associated pipe work and pumps (amended
description)
HS/LB/18/00928

Recommendation:

Grant Listed Building Consent

Ward:
Conservation Area:
Listed Building:

OLD HASTINGS 2018
Yes - Old Town
No

Applicant:

Hastings Borough Council per Baker Architectural
Services 29 Stirling Road Castleham Business
Centre East St. Leonards-on-Sea, East Sussex.
TN38 9NP

Proposal:

Public Consultation
Site Notice:
Press Advertisement:
Letters of Objection:
Petitions of Objection Received:
Letters of Support:
Petitions of Support Received:
Neutral comments received
Application Status:

Yes

Yes - Affects a Listed Building Amended Plans
0
0
0
0
0
Not delegated Council application on Council owned land

1. Site and surrounding area
The site is a prominent two storey building which was built in 1823 and abuts the High Street.
The building is Grade II listed, first listed on the 19th January 1951. The building was
formerly the Town Hall and was used as a
museum
Page
81for many years, from 1949 until 2014.

Most recently, the building has been used as an indoor children's playground - the Discovery
Playground, although this use has recently ceased and the building is vacant.
The building is within the Old Town Conservation Area. The front of the building features a
ground floor arcade of five large round arches with windows and the main door with five tall
traditional sliding sash windows to the first floor. To the top and middle of the building there is
a rectangular panel with the coat of arms of the town and the date.
The surrounding area is predominantly made up of buildings with retail use at ground floor
and residential to the floors above. The building is located within an Archaeological
Notification Area, the Old Town District Shopping Centre and is also listed as an Asset of
Community Value. To the rear of the building is St Clements Church which is Grade II* listed
and stands at a higher elevation than the site.
Listing
Former Town Hall. Dated 1823. Stuccoed. 2 storeys. Ground floor arcade of 5 round arches
with keyblocks and impost, glazed. Above wide band at 1st floor level. 1st floor 5 tall sashes
with glazing bars and cills, above band end parapet ramped up at ends and rising at centre
to hold rectangular panel with coat of arms of town and date. Slate hipped roof, at one end
square wooden bell turret, domed, with ball finial.
Constraints
Grade II Listed Building
Conservation Area - Old Town
SSSI Impact Risk Zone
Hastings Borough Council Owned Land
Archaeological Notification Area
Asset of Community Value Listed

2. Proposed development
It is proposed to install 2 x PACi wall mounted systems internally to the ground and first
floors (resulting in 4 in total), together with 4 x PACi elite inverter single phase external
condensers behind the parapet wall on the roof. Combined, these units provide a 'Multi Split
System’ to improve the energy rating of the property and control the internal environment in
terms of heating and cooling. Associated works will include the relevant pipe works and
pumps, which will exit the roof through existing vent locations.
The external condensers measure 619mm x 799mm x 299mm, with the internal wall
mounted systems measuring 300mm x 1065mm x 230mm. These external condensers will
fit in behind the existing parapet wall, and therefore, will not be visible from the streetscene.
The internal wall mounted systems will be sited at a high level to minimise the amount of
required pipe work, which will be sited in existing cupboards where possible.
The application is supported by the following documents:
·
·
·

Design Heritage Justification Statement (Issue 002)
Specification sheets
Annotated photos of location of roof vent tiles, position of internal units, cupboards
locating the proposed pipe work.

Page 82

Relevant planning history
HS/FA/19/00097 Installation of a new ' multi split system' comprising of 2 no internal wall
mounted air conditioning units to ground and first floors, 4 no external
condensers to the roof and associated pipe work and pumps (amended
description)
Awaiting determination
HS/LB/18/00583 Replacement of lead guttering and parapet coping with new zinc gutters
and parapet copings
Granted 06/02/2018
HS/LB/17/00845 Install CCTV camera on rear external wall, facing the churchyard,and 2
motion activated solar lights.
Granted 11/01/2018
HS/FA/16/00651 Change of use from D1 (museum) to D2 (indoor children's playground).
Proposed mainly free standing fixtures, and redecoration throughout,
including glazed balustrade. Toilet on first floor to be re fitted. Repaint
external door using heritage colour. Windows will have stick on window
frosting with business logo. (application HS/LB/16/00711 also applies).
Granted 23/12/16
HS/LB/16/00711 Change of use from D1 (museum) to D2 (indoor children's playground).
Proposed mainly free standing fixtures, and redecoration throughout,
including glazed balustrade. Toilet on first floor to be re fitted. Repaint
external door using heritage colour. Windows will have stick on window
frosting with business logo (application HS/FA/16/00651 also applies).
Granted 23/12/16
National and local policies
Hastings Local Plan – Planning Strategy 2014
Policy EN1 - Built and Historic Environment
Hastings Local Plan – Development Management Plan 2015
Policy HN1 - Development Affecting the Significance and Setting of Designated Heritage
Assets (including Conservation Areas)
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
Section 12 of the NPPF sets out the requirement for good design in development. Paragraph
124 states: "The creation of high quality buildings and places is fundamental to what the
planning and development process should achieve. Good design is a key aspect of
sustainable development, creates better places in which to live and work and helps make
development acceptable to communities."
Paragraph 127 of the NPPF requires that decisions should ensure developments:
· Function well;
· Add to the overall quality of the area for the lifetime of that development;
· Are visually attractive in terms of:
* Layout
* Architecture
* Landscaping
· Are sympathetic to local character/history whilst not preventing change or innovation;
· Maintain a strong sense of place having regard to:

Page 83

·
·

* Building types
* Materials
* Arrangement of streets
Optimise the potential of the site to accommodate an appropriate number and mix of
development;
Create safe places with a high standard of amenity for future and existing users

Paragraph 130 states permission should be refused for development of poor design that fails
to take the opportunities available for improving the character and quality of an area and the
way that it functions.
Paragraph 130 also seeks to ensure that the quality of an approved development is not
materially diminished between permission and completion through changes to the permitted
scheme.
Paragraph 189 (of Section 16. "Conserving and enhancing the historic environment") states:
"In determining applications, local planning authorities should require an applicant to
describe the significance of any heritage assets affected, including any contribution made by
their setting. The level of detail should be proportionate to the assets' importance and no
more than is sufficient to understand the potential impact of the proposal on their
significance. As a minimum the relevant historic environment record should have been
consulted and the heritage assets assessed using appropriate expertise where necessary.
Where a site on which development is proposed includes, or has the potential to include,
heritage assets with archaeological interest, local planning authorities should require
developers to submit an appropriate desk-based assessment and, where necessary, a field
evaluation."
Paragraph 190 states: "Local planning authorities should identify and assess the particular
significance of any heritage asset that may be affected by a proposal (including by
development affecting the setting of a heritage asset) taking account of the available
evidence and any necessary expertise. They should take this into account when considering
the impact of a proposal on a heritage asset, to avoid or minimise any conflict between the
heritage asset's conservation and any aspect of the proposal."
Paragraph 192 states: "In determining applications, local planning authorities should take
account of:
a) the desirability of sustaining and enhancing the significance of heritage assets and putting
them to viable uses consistent with their conservation;
b) the positive contribution that conservation of heritage assets can make to sustainable
communities including their economic vitality; and
c) the desirability of new development making a positive contribution to local character and
distinctiveness."
Paragraph 193 states: When considering the impact of a proposed development on the
significance of a designated heritage asset, great weight should be given to the asset's
conservation (and the more important the asset, the greater the weight should be). This is
irrespective of whether any potential harm amounts to substantial harm, total loss or less
than substantial harm to its significance.
Paragraph 194 states: "Any harm to, or loss of, the significance of a designated heritage
asset (from its alteration or destruction, or from development within its setting), should
require clear and convincing justification. Substantial harm to or loss of:
a) grade II listed buildings, or grade II registered parks or gardens, should be exceptional;

Page 84

b) assets of the highest significance, notably scheduled monuments, protected wreck sites,
registered battlefields, grade I and II* listed buildings, grade I and II* registered parks and
gardens, and World Heritage Sites, should be wholly exceptional."
Paragraph 196 states: "Where a development proposal will lead to less than substantial
harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset, this harm should be weighed against
the public benefits of the proposal including, where appropriate, securing its optimum viable
use."
Paragraph 200 states: "Local planning authorities should look for opportunities for new
development within Conservation Areas and World Heritage Sites, and within the setting of
heritage assets, to enhance or better reveal their significance. Proposals that preserve those
elements of the setting that make a positive contribution to the asset (or which better reveal
its significance) should be treated favourably."
Paragraph 202 states: "Local planning authorities should assess whether the benefits of a
proposal for enabling development, which would otherwise conflict with planning policies but
which would secure the future conservation of a heritage asset, outweigh the disbenefits of
departing from those policies."

3. Consultation comments
Conservation Officer - No objection
Following the receipt of additonal detail, the conservation officer does not consider the works
to cause harm to the significance or setting of this heritage asset, and there will be no loss to
the building's fabric.

4. Representations
No letters of representation were received following the display of a site notice at the site.

5. Determining issues
In determining listed building applications consideration needs to be given to matters of
heritage. Permission will be given for those schemes that show a full understanding of the
significance of the asset and convincingly demonstrate how their chosen design sustains and
enhances the significance of any heritage assets affected
a) Heritage
As established in Policy EN1 of the Hastings Local Plan, although significant progress has
been made in terms of improving building condition, the historic environment is still
vulnerable to loss and inappropriate change. It is critical that these special historic buildings
and areas are protected, now and in the future. Active management of our historic
environment will be required, to ensure that its significance is protected, enabling future
generations the opportunity to experience and enjoy these special places.
The Old Town Hall is a Grade II listed building. The property is Georgian, dating to 1823.
This is a key building along High Street, retaining its character as a former public building
and making an important contribution to views in this part of the Old Town Conservation
Area. The building is also visible from the north side, along Church Passage, and from St.
Clements churchyard.

Page 85

The works will have no impact on the front elevation of the building. The 4 proposed
condenser units will be sited on the rear roof of the listed building, tucked in behind an area
of raised parapet. The rear roof of the building is visible from both Church Passage, to the
north of the Old Town Hall, and from the eastern most area of St. Clements churchyard.
Despite this, it is not considered that the new external equipment will be a prominent feature,
as the condenser units will mostly be hidden behind the central raised parapet on the rear
roof. Also, there will be new pipe work within the roof void connecting the internal air
conditioning units to the external condenser units. The pipe work will exit the roof through
existing roof vent locations, with no loss of fabric. Overall therefore, it is considered that the
external works are acceptable in principle, subject to conditions relating to fixing methods
and restricting wiring and ducting in visible locations (conditions 3, 4 and 5).
The proposed air heating and cooling system will also involve changes to the interior of the
listed building. This will include the provision of wall mounted air conditioning units in four
locations within the building and associated internal pipe runs through the existing rooms and
through the roof space to connect to the external plant. These works will not involve damage
to the fabric of the listed building, and are therefore considered acceptable, as harm will not
be caused to its significance.
Combined, the proposed multi-split system will enhance the energy efficiency of the building,
helping bring it back into use, providing benefits for the vitality and viability of the immediate
area, whilst sustaining the significance of the heritage asset. The proposal is therefore in
accordance with Policies EN1 and HN1 of the Hastings Local Plan and the relevant sections
of the National Planning Policy Framework.
b) Environmental Impact Assessment
The National Planning Practice guidance (Paragraph: 017 Reference ID: 4-017-20170728)
states that "Projects which are described in the first column of Schedule 2 but which do not
exceed the relevant thresholds, or meet the criteria in the second column of the Schedule, or
are not at least partly in a sensitive area, are not Schedule 2 development."
This development is not within a sensitive area as defined by Regulation 2 (1) of the Town
and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017 and does not
exceed the thresholds of Schedule 2 of the Town and Country Planning (Environmental
Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017.
c) Site constraints
The proposed works will take place internally, and on top of the existing building. Therefore,
there will be no impact in terms of the identified site constraints.

6. Conclusion
In view of the above, the proposed multi-split system for heating and cooling is considered
acceptable and will not cause harm to the significance and setting of the listed building, or
the wider conservation area. The Conservation Officer raises no objection to the proposal
subject to the imposition of conditions. The proposal meets the requirements of Policies EN1
and HN1 of the Hastings Local Plan and the relevant sections of the National Planning Policy
Framework. Therefore, this application also complies with the development plan in
accordance with Section 18 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act
1990.

Page 86

The Human Rights considerations have been taken into account fully in balancing the
planning issues.

7. Recommendation

Grant Listed Building Consent subject to the following conditions:
1.

The work to which this consent relates shall be begun before the expiration
of three years beginning with the date on which this consent is granted.

2.

The works hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following approved plans:
BA1857-01, 02, 03B, 04A, 05A, 06, 07A, 8
Specification sheet S-5OPK1E5A, U-5OPE2E5A

3.

The new external condensers shall be fixed onto the render parapet gutter
walls, and shall not be fixed in place by taking a fixing through the metal
sheet lining of the parapet gutters below. This is to prevent damage to the
gutter linings and resulting water damage to the fabric of the building. The
external condensers shall remain fixed by this method thereafter.

4.

No wiring or ducting shall be installed across the elevations or visible roof
slopes of the building in connection with these works

5.

The new internal wall mounted units and ducting shall not be fixed onto any
of the existing timber wall panelling or boarding, unless otherwise agreed in
writing, in advance, with the Local Planning Authority

6.

With the exception of internal works the building works required to carry out
the development allowed by this permission must only be carried out within
the following times:08.00 - 18.00 Monday to Friday
08.00 - 13.00 on Saturdays
No working on Sundays or Public Holidays.

Reasons:
1.

This condition is imposed in accordance with the provisions of Section 18 of
the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990.

2.

For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

3.

To ensure the architectural and historic character of this Grade 2 Listed
Building is adequately protected.

4.

To ensure the architectural and historic character of this Grade 2 Listed
Building is adequately protected.

Page 87

5.

To ensure the architectural and historic character of this Grade 2 Listed
Building is adequately protected.

6.

To safeguard the amenity of nearby residents.

Notes to the Applicant
1.

Failure to comply with any condition imposed on this consent may result in
enforcement action without further warning.

2.

Statement of positive engagement: In dealing with this application Hastings
Borough Council has actively sought to work with the applicant in a positive
and proactive manner, in accordance with paragraph 38 of the National
Planning Policy Framework.

The reason for granting this consent is:
1

National Planning Policy Framework Section 12 applies. The works
proposed will not harm the designated heritage asset.

_____________________________________________________________________

Officer to Contact
Mrs S Wood, Telephone 01424 783329

Background Papers
Application No: HS/LB/18/00928 including all letters and documents

Page 88

Agenda
Item
5f rights [2019]. OS [100021328]
© Crown Copyright
and database

St Mary Magdalen

24.0m

A
ST M

26

±

Orthodox Church

RGA

19

RE T

1 to 7
22

16

RRA
'S TE

Court

9

13.9m
1

12

E

SM

14
10

R
QUA

R
RIO
WAR

S
RIOR
WAR

SM

14

CE

5

12

SQU
A RE
2

7

8

9

10

11

12

13 to

17

15

80
1 to ourt
ld C
ie
f
s
Ever

LD P
SFIE
R
E
EV

8.6m

4

Shelter
Queen Victoria

8.8m

Shelter

ade
me n

Slipway

Shingle
r
igh Wate
Mean H

Shingle

Shingle

Rock & Sand

My Heart Belongs to Hastings
Groyne

(sculpture)

Shingle

nade

Warrior Square

Playstop
ro
er P
Low

e
Prom

PC

Shelter

Shingle

Roc

Shingle

Ro
ck

k

Sand

0

Store 1
Bottle Alley
St Leonards-on-sea

Date: Jun 2019
Scale: 1:1,250

E
LAC

Application No. HS/CD/19/00299

10

20

30

40
Meters

Discharge of condition 7 (windows) of planning permission
HS/FA/18/00535 - Change of use from B8 (Storage) to D1
(Gallery/Studio) and alterations to front elevation (amended
description).

Assistant Director Housing & Built Environment
Hastings Borough Council,
Muriel Matters House, Breeds Place,
Hastings, East Sussex TN34 3UY
Tel: 01424 451090
email: planning@hastings.gov.uk
Use of this data is subject to terms and conditions. You are granted a non-exclusive,
royalty free, revocable licence solely to view the Licensed Data for non-commercial
purposes for the period during which Hastings Borough Council makes it available.
You are not permitted to copy, sub-license, distribute, sell or otherwise make available
the Licenced Data to third parties in any form. Third party rights to enforce the
terms of this licence shall be reserved to OS.

Page 89

This page is intentionally left blank

AGENDA ITEM NO: 5 (f)
Report to:

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting:

10 July 2019

Report from:

Assistant Director of Housing and Built Environment

Application Address:

Store 1, Bottle Alley, St Leonards-on-sea

Proposal:

Application No:

Discharge of condition 7 (windows) of planning
permission HS/FA/18/00535 - Change of use
from B8 (Storage) to D1 (Gallery/Studio) and
alterations to front elevation (amended
description).
HS/CD/19/00299

Recommendation:

Approve

Ward:
Conservation Area:
Listed Building:

CENTRAL ST LEONARDS 2018
Yes - Warrior Square
No

Applicant:

Estates, Hastings Borough Council

Public Consultation
Site Notice:
Press Advertisement:
Letters of Objection:
Petitions of Objection Received:
Letters of Support:
Petitions of Support Received:
Neutral comments received

No
No
0
0
0
0
0

Application Status:

Not delegated Council application on Council owned land

1. Background Note
The original full application was originally considered at Planning Committee on the 12.09.18
where it was resolved to defer the application to allow for amended plans to be submitted for
changes to the front elevation. The application was subsequently granted on 12th December
2018 with various conditions including condition 7 which this application relates to.

Page 91

2. Site and Surrounding Area
The site comprises Store 1, Bottle Alley, Eversfield Place situated on the Sea-front Lower
Promenade, close to Warrior Square. The Lower Promenade provides a covered 'alley'
walkway along the top of the shore between Warrior Square and the Pier. There are some
historic store-rooms situated under the main promenade that are accessed from the lower
promenade. Store 1 (that is the subject of this application) is currently a vacant store unit.
The immediate neighbouring store is an electricity plant store.
Store 1 has a small internal floor area of approximately 24sqm. Access is via a single front
access door from the Lower promenade 'alley' walkway. The unit has two single shuttered
front window openings with sliding aluminium windows fitted. The application store unit is the
end unit situated closest to the pedestrian ramp that leads up from the Lower Promenade to
Warrior Square street level.
Eversfield Place at street level towards the corner with Warrior Square has restaurants and
shops; beyond the shops as far as the Pier is mainly residential. Warrior Square lies close to
London Road which is a main retail centre street.
Constraints
Warrior Square Conservation Area
Archaeological Notification Area

3. Proposed development
Discharge of condition 7 (windows) of planning permission HS/FA/18/00535
The application is supported by the following documents:
Photographs

Relevant Planning History
HS/FA/18/00535 Change of use from B8 (Storage) to D1 (Gallery/Studio. And alterations
to front elevation (amended description). Granted

National and Local Policies
Hastings Local Plan – Planning Strategy (2014)a
Policy FA2 - Strategic Policy for Central Area
Policy FA4 - Strategy for Central St Leonards
Policy FA6 - Strategic Policy for The Seafront
Policy EN1 – Built and Historic Environment
Hastings Local Plan – Development Management Plan (2015)
Policy LP1 - Considering planning applications
Policy HN1 - Development Affecting the Significance and Setting of Designated Heritage
Assets (including Conservation Areas)

Page 92

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
Paragraph 11 sets out a general presumption in favour of sustainable development and
states that development proposals which accord with the development plan should be
approved without delay.
Paragraph 12 of the NPPF states that applications for planning permission must be
determined in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate
otherwise. Three dimensions of sustainability given in paragraph 8 are to be sought jointly:
economic (by ensuring that sufficient land of the right type is available in the right places and
at the right time to support growth and innovation); social (providing housing, creating high
quality environment with accessible local services); and environmental (contributing to,
protecting and enhancing natural, built and historic environment) whilst paragraph 9 advises
that plans and decisions need to take local circumstances into account, so they respond to
the different opportunities for achieving sustainable development in different areas.
Section 12 of the NPPF sets out the requirement for good design in development. Paragraph
124 states: "The creation of high quality buildings and places is fundamental to what the
planning and development process should achieve. Good design is a key aspect of
sustainable development, creates better places in which to live and work and helps make
development acceptable to communities."
Paragraph 127 of the NPPF requires that decisions should ensure developments:
· Function well;
· Add to the overall quality of the area for the lifetime of that development;
· Are visually attractive in terms of:
* Layout
* Architecture
* Landscaping
· Are sympathetic to local character/history whilst not preventing change or innovation;
· Maintain a strong sense of place having regard to:
* Building types
* Materials
* Arrangement of streets
· Optimise the potential of the site to accommodate an appropriate number and mix of
development;
· Create safe places with a high standard of amenity for future and existing users
Paragraph 130 states permission should be refused for development of poor design that fails
to take the opportunities available for improving the character and quality of an area and the
way that it functions.
Paragraph 130 also seeks to ensure that the quality of an approved development is not
materially diminished between permission and completion through changes to the permitted
scheme.
Paragraph 148: The planning system should support the transition to a low carbon future in
a changing climate, taking full account of flood risk and coastal change. It should help to:
shape places in ways that contribute to radical reductions in greenhouse gas emissions,
minimise vulnerability and improve resilience; encourage the reuse of existing resources,
including the conversion of existing buildings; and support renewable and low carbon energy
and associated infrastructure.

Page 93

Paragraph 155: Inappropriate development in areas at risk of flooding should be avoided by
directing development away from areas at highest risk (whether existing or future). Where
development is necessary in such areas, the development should be made safe for its
lifetime without increasing flood risk elsewhere.
Paragraph 159: If it is not possible for development to be located in zones with a lower risk
of flooding (taking into account wider sustainable development objectives), the exception
test may have to be applied. The need for the exception test will depend on the potential
vulnerability of the site and of the development proposed, in line with the Flood Risk
Vulnerability Classification set out in national planning guidance.

4. Consultations comments
Not required

5. Representations
No representations received

6. Determining Issues
The main issue enabling the discharge of condition 7 is the final finish of the window on store
1 and whether that condition has been satisfied.
a) Impact on Character and appearance of Conservation Area
Policy EN1 of Hastings Planning Strategy and Policy HN1 of Hastings Development
Management Plan set policy protecting the significance and setting of heritage assets
including conservation areas and seek development that sustains and enhances the heritage
asset. In this case the site is situated within the Warrior Square Conservation Area. The
conservation officer has been consulted and comments that the Lower Promenade is an
undesignated local heritage asset; the Lower Promenade is part of the Seafront historic
resort development dating from circa 1930's.
Planning Permission HS/FA/18/00535 had a planning condition that the windows be painted
dark grey or black to match the shutters, using a suitable Marine Paint to protect against the
sea salt elements, and also that the internal reveal and finish is made good.
Following review of the details provided it is considered that the works carried out are
acceptable, satisfy policy EN1 of the Hastings Local Plan and Policy HN1 of the Hastings
Development Management Plan (2015) , and the condition can be discharged.

7. Conclusion
For the reasons set out above the condition is considered to have been satisfied attracting a
recommendation of the condition being successfully discharged.
These proposals comply with the Development Plan in accordance with Section 38 (6) of the
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 which states:

Page 94

"If regard is to be had to the development plan for the purpose of any determination to be
made under the Planning Acts the determination must be made in accordance with the plan
unless material considerations indicate otherwise”.
The Human Rights considerations have been taken into account fully in balancing the
planning issues.

8. Recommendation

Approve

Note to the Applicant
1.

Statement of positive engagement: In dealing with this application Hastings
Borough Council has actively sought to work with the applicant in a positive
and proactive manner, in accordance with paragraph 38 of the National
Planning Policy Framework.

_____________________________________________________________________

Officer to Contact
Mr Simon Richard, Telephone 01424 783320

Background Papers
Application No: HS/CD/19/00299 including all letters and documents

Page 95

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6

Agenda Item:

Report to:

Planning Committee

Date:

10 July 2019

Report from:

Planning Services Manager

Title of report:

PLANNING APPEALS & DELEGATED DECISIONS

Purpose of report:

To inform the Planning Committee of any planning appeals that
have been lodged, of any decisions received from the Planning
Inspectorate and the number of delegated decisions made
between 22/05/2019 to 28/06/2019

Recommendations:

That the report be noted

The following appeals have been received:
Address/
Application
Number
39 Croft Road,
Hastings, TN34
3HJ
HS/LB/18/00288
Unit A, Brook
Way, Hastings,
TN35 4NN
HS/EX/18/00607

Proposal

PSM’s
Rec.

Amend window and
door access to rear
elevation. Partial
removal of internal
wall with new steel
beam. New flue for
boiler.
Application for a
Certificate of Lawful
development for
existing use of a
parking and storage
area.

Where the
decision was
made

Type of
Appeal

Refuse
planning
permission

Delegated

Planning

Refuse
planning
permission

Delegated

Planning

The following appeals have been allowed:
Address/
Application
Number

Proposal

PSM’s
Rec.

Page 97

Where the
decision was
made

Type of
Appeal

Sunnyheights,
105 Old Roar
Road, St
Leonards on
Sea, TN37 7HD
HS/FA/18/00560
Flamingo Park,
East Street, The
Stade, Hastings,
TN34 3AR
HS/EX/18/00067
85 Hughenden
Road,
Hastings, TN34
3TF
HS/FA/18/00676
83 Hughenden
Road,
Hastings, TN34
3TF
HS/FA/18/00737
Shop and
Premises, 20
Norman Road,
St Leonards-onsea, TN37 6NH
HS/FA/18/00327

Shop and
Premises,
20 Norman
Road, St
Leonards-onsea,
TN37 6NH
HS/AA/18/00328

Proposed erection of
detached dwelling &
double garage

Refuse
planning
permission

Delegated

Planning

Application for a
lawful development
certificate for existing
use as an
Amusement Park

Refuse
planning
permission

Delegated

Planning

Change of use from a
4 bedroom house into
a 4 bedroom
HMO (Retrospective)

Refuse
planning
permission

Delegated

Planning

Retrospective
Change of
use application for 4
bedroomed house to
4 bedroomed HMO

Refuse
planning
permission

Delegated

Planning

Retention of an ATM
installed through the
shop front window
frame to the right of
the recessed glazed
entrance. Glazing has
been replaced with a
new white laminate
security infill panel
incorporating the ATM
fascia and surround
signage.
ATM fascia (Wincor
2050) with nonilluminated black and
green polycarbonate
surround signage with
white lettering "free
cash withdrawals and
balance enquiries"
and "cash zone" and
no illumination to the
polycarbonate
surround signage.
ATM green acrylic
fascia sign with nonilluminated white
lettering and accepted
card logos.

Refuse
planning
permission

Delegated

Planning

Refuse
planning
permission

Delegated

Planning

Page 98

Mill Farm, Mill
Lane,
Hastings, TN35
5DP
HS/FA/18/00952

Proposed extensions
and improvements to
dwelling, including
addition of balcony
and new parking &
turning area with
retaining wall

Refuse
planning
permission

Delegated

Planning

The following appeals have been dismissed:
Address/
Application
Number
68 Elphinstone
Road,
Hastings, TN34
2EB

Proposal

PSM’s
Rec.

Change of use to C4
(HMO)
- Retrospective

Where the
decision was
made

Type of
Appeal

Refuse
planning
permission

Delegated

Planning

Outline planning
permission
for a residential
dwelling
HS/OA/18/00464 with all matters
reserved

Refuse
planning
permission

Delegated

Planning

Land at Ore
Place &
Centurion Rise,
Hastings, TN34
2LR

Refuse
planning
permission

Delegated

Planning

Refuse
planning
permission

Delegated

Planning

Proposed 6 No. new
build domestic
houses.

Refuse
planning
permission

Delegated

Replacement
windows to front with
UPVC(Retrospective)

Refuse
planning
permission

Delegated

HS/FA/18/01013
Land adjoining 3
Ore
Place, Hastings

Outline planning
permission
for a residential
dwelling
with all matters
reserved

HS/OA/18/00463
Flat 1a, 42
New partly
retrospective decking
Nelson
Road, Hastings,
TN34 3RZ
HS/FA/18/00907
1 & 2 Wayside,
490 & 492
Sedlescombe
Road North, St
Leonards-onsea,
TN37 7PH
HS/FA/17/00664
Flat 2, 29 St
Matthews
Gardens,
St Leonards-onsea,

Page 99

TN38 0TT
HS/FA/18/00565
Type of Delegated Decision
Granted Permission
General PD (Approval)
Part Granted
Permission not Required
Refused Permission
Prior Approval Approved
Self Certificate - Permitted
Withdrawn by Applicant
Total

Number of Decisions
75
1
2
1
4
1
1
1
86

Background Papers:
Various correspondences with Planning Inspectorate
Report written by:
Lucy Brooks – Tel: (01424) 783264
Email: planning@hastings.gov.uk

Page 100

